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bpha 2022

We take responsibility
•  We always do what we say, when we say we will
•  We are accountable for what we do and 

sometimes what we don’t do
•  We do the right thing not the easy thing

We show empathy
•  We respect every resident and colleague
•  We listen and make sure we understand
•  We are considerate to each other and  

protect the environment

We are ambitious
•  We learn, and with our residents, find better ways
•   We want to make a positive difference for  

more people
•  We are committed to excellence and  

being the best we can be

We are better together
•   We are one bpha, committed to our  

shared goals and standards
•  We achieve more with others inside  

and outside bpha
•  We value and draw strength from 

our diversity and differences
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307
Affordable homes built  
(2021: 366)

£50m
Invested in new homes  
(2021: £38m)

19,618
Homes owned or managed  
(2021: 19,464)

G1
Regulator of Social Housing 
Governance Rating  
(re-affirmed June 2022)

V1
Regulator of Social Housing 
Viability Rating  
(updated June 2022) 

A+(stable)
Standard and Poor’s Rating
(2021 A+(negative))

£62m
Operating surplus 
(2021: £60m)

42%
Operating margin on core  
operating business (2021: 43%)

134%
EBITDA MRI (% of similar interest 
payable and similar charges)  
(2021: 151%)

100%
All homes have met Decent Homes 
Standard since 2010

£35m
Invested in maintaining and improving 
existing homes (2021: £26m)

205
Shared Ownership sales  
(2021: 124)

Our highlights

bpha resident, Elliot

bpha customer, Abolade
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We continue to live in uncertain, changing and challenging 
times. Taking a longer-term view for the organisation has 
never been more important. Whilst I am happy with the 
investments we are making now in support of our customers 
and their homes, I want to be sure they are appropriate for 
future needs. 

We are making good progress in improving the energy 
efficiency of the properties we manage with 82% of the 
affordable housing stock now having at least a C Rated 
Energy Performance Certificate. We have also invested in  
a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system which  
is providing benefits in terms of customer access, information 
and service provision. In addition, we are in the later stages 
of bringing our repairs and maintenance service in-house to 
help further improve our maintenance services and provide 
better contact between customers and bpha staff. 

The commitment we made to refurbish the high-rise 
properties in Bedford is now being realised. The first scheme, 
Ashburnham Court, a 55-home building located adjacent 
to Bedford Station, is being comprehensively redeveloped 
internally as well as externally. Redevelopment of Bury Court, 
a high-rise property in Brickhill, will follow over the next 
couple of years. 

Even with this excellent progress we are asking ourselves, 
“Is it enough to deliver the quality of service and new 
home provision we aspire to in the longer term?” When we 
consider this question in the context of the challenges we 
are facing - the current economic situation, the challenging 
employment market, new regulatory requirements, 
environmental considerations including the need for greater 
energy efficiency and adaptation to climate change - it 
is appropriate that we have started to look for ways to 
underpin our ambitions through finding like-minded potential 
partners to work with. Such a move was anticipated within 
our Corporate Strategy 2025/30. We were clear about the 
potential benefits we were seeking from such an approach. 
This included the ability to accelerate our delivery plans 
whilst maintaining our commitment to local service delivery, 
local communities and the role of customers in shaping 
future services.

I was delighted to be able to announce in April 2022 that 
bpha’s Board had agreed to work with Flagship Group  
and Futures Housing Group to see if we could create  
a new organisation that would enable bpha to meet its 
longer-term aspirations whilst meeting the ‘local customer 
services’ imperative. While we are still at an early stage in  
this process, it is good to be undertaking this exploration 
from a position of financial, investment and reputational 
strength with other organisations that have an aligned vision. 
The prospects are good and I look forward to being able  
to report further progress during the coming year. 

While a new partnership may well be the future for bpha,  
in the meanwhile we will continue to focus on the delivery of 
high quality and timely services and improvement initiatives 
to our existing customers. We know how important this is 
for our customers and colleagues. The new partnership will 
blend the best from each of its founders and from what I can 
see so far, this will provide a firm foundation for the future.

At the start of the year, we used an employee led process 
to review and revise our values. The values are now more 
active, clearer and focused. They capture who we are and 
what we are about. I hope when reading this year’s Annual 
Report and Financial Statements our values shine through 
in everything we do. Annual Reports tend to be, rightly so, 
factual about what has been achieved. However, it’s not just 
what we do that is important, it also how we do it. Each of our 
four values shapes a particular way of doing things. Over the 
last couple of rather unusual years, we have sought to live 
out our values in all of our activities. 

Thank you to everyone who has played their part in helping 
bpha continue to serve its customers while working towards 
its vision of building communities where people can live 
happily in a home they can afford.

Dr Paul Leinster, CBE
Chair

During my first term, the Board refreshed bpha’s overarching Corporate Strategy and  
sub-strategies, to ensure the organisation continues to meet the needs of present and  
future customers. I am excited to see the potential that has been created to provide  
improved customer services and meet the environmental and regulatory challenges ahead. 

Chair’s 
statement
I am excited to see the 
potential that has been 
created to provide  
improved customer services 
and meet the environmental 
and regulatory challenges 
ahead.

bpha Chair, Paul Leinster
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Charles Darwin famously said something along the lines  
of, “It’s not the strongest of the species that survive but  
those best able to adapt and change”, which, for me,  
sums up bpha’s strong performance over the past year. 

Our purpose is enduring and we have been able to adapt 
and change to meet it in full, despite the operational context 
moving on at a significant pace. In the first year of Covid,  
the challenges were fairly one dimensional, focused on 
keeping services running despite the understandable 
restrictions. This year we have tried to establish the ‘new 
normal’ while meeting the challenges of: sporadic Covid 
restrictions, increasing cost pressures on many fronts, 
catching up on asset investments, a tricky labour market, 
increasing development pressures and accelerating efforts 
to meet the outcomes of the Social Housing White Paper  
and the anticipated regulatory changes that will come from 
it. Even with these challenges, I am pleased to report that 
bpha has had another good year. 

Central to bpha’s financial performance this year, has been 
maintaining a >40% core operating margin despite rising 
cost pressures, especially through the last half of the period. 
Rental income was well managed, with arrears being held 
below 3% because of our continuing proactive approach 
to supporting customers, helping them respond positively 
when they faced difficulties. As a result, 1,570 tenancies were 
supported resulting in only 14 evictions due to payment 
issues. With the core business being closely controlled, bpha’s 
overall performance was boosted by a very strong sales 
performance. This saw 205 new shared ownership properties 
sold and a further 127 where customers exercised their right 
to buy more of their property through staircasing. The overall 
result was a surplus of £28m before the fair value movement 
(FVM) of bpha’s financial instruments, up by  
£3m and 12% from the previous year. 

Careful financial management has allowed bpha to continue 
to invest in its services, keeping the needs and concerns of our 
customers at the centre of our decision-making processes. 
These investments fall into two categories: improvements  
to the fabric of homes and the development of new systems 
to enhance customer experience either directly, through 
the ongoing development of our Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM) system, or indirectly through work  
to support the development of our new in-house maintenance 
service, which will launch in the autumn of 2022.

Investments in our homes ensured that 100% of our 
properties achieved the Decent Homes Standard.  
However, our work went far beyond this minimum standard. 
We brought a further 686 homes up to EPC band C and 
above meaning that the average SAP rating for our 
homes reached 75.05 by the end of the year, up from the 
previous year’s already good performance of 74.42. After 
two years of planning, we were able to start our first high 
rise refurbishment at Ashburnham Court in Bedford. This 
is the first of three schemes that we aim to refurbish over 
the coming three years. Despite the market and supply 
challenges of the last two Covid affected years, we have now 
fully caught up with our planned works programme meaning 
that 2,372 households this year benefited from either a new 
bathroom, kitchen, windows or roof. In addition, we also 

worked hard to address several, deep seated, antisocial 
behaviour concerns aided by the introduction of new  
or better-quality CCTV systems, work that was carried  
out with our local partners to make these communities  
safer and better places to live. 

All this work was done with due reference to the anticipated 
requirements of the new Fire and Building Safety Acts, the 
anticipated outcomes of the Social Housing White Paper 
and future environmental and sustainability goals and 
considerations.  

As well as spending £35m on maintenance and 
improvements, we also delivered 307 new homes. Whilst  
this is lower than bpha’s historical levels, reflecting the 
difficulty of the current development environment,  
it was satisfying in as much as it also represents the start 
of the rebuilding of our development pipeline post the 
pandemic. Our aim is to develop 2,250 new affordable 
homes in the period 2023 to 2028, so it was important  
to create a solid foundation to build in a market that  
we expect to be challenging.

Although technology will play an important part in our future, 
we recognise that social housing is, and always will be,  
a people business. Over the last 12 months we have invested 
significantly in our colleagues, structures and working 
environment. In March 2022 we completed our 18-month 
Organisational Development programme which saw us 
refocus our teams, update our values, optimise our new 
hybrid working model, introduce a range of new training 
and development initiatives. With this in mind and given the 
pandemic and economic difficulties of a post Brexit world,  
I was delighted that our colleagues voted us a Great Place  
To Work (GPTW) again in our annual engagement survey 
with nearly 90% of people taking part. 

For the third year running bpha is in the large employer 
GPTW list and, for the first time, will feature in the Employee 
Wellbeing standings. A fantastic result and a real tribute  
to all the work of the bpha team. We know that having  
a well-motivated and capable workforce will always be  
at the heart of our success in delivering excellent services  
to our customers

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all bpha’s 
colleagues and our many partners this year for all of their 
hard work and commitment. Working together, we have been 
successful in keeping our customers safe and well served,  
as well as enabling bpha to continue to invest significantly in 
its current assets and future aspirations. The nature and pace  
of changes and challenges within our operating environment 
is accelerating. Coming back to Darwin, I am pleased to report 
that bpha continues to demonstrate that it can change and 
adapt accordingly. 

Best wishes,

Kevin Bolt
Chief Executive Officer

“It’s not the strongest of 
the species that survive 
but those best able to 
adapt and change.”

CEO’s statement

Charles Darwin

bpha CEO, Kevin Bolt
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Throughout the year we worked hard to ensure that our 
customers had a range of opportunities to share their 
experiences, ideas and opinions with us in order to help us 
develop our services and respond when things have not 
worked as well as people would have liked. Two staples 
of this approach are a twice-yearly telephone survey 
and direct feedback from our established customer 
groups to our Board-led Customer Committee. Further 
direct communication comes from Resolve, our customer 
engagement group who guide us on responding to and 
learning from customer complaints. Our Resident Inspectors 
also again played an important role by assessing the quality 
of our repairs and maintenance programmes as well as 
identifying priority improvement areas. After months of Covid 
restrictions, we welcomed a return to hearing the thoughts 
and ideas of customers in person. We were delighted to host 
our first large scale engagement session for nearly  
two years with over 80 customers from different services  
in February 2022.

Working with customers in these ways has led to several 
improvements. These included developments to our grounds 
maintenance and cleaning services, agreeing the specification 
for materials to be used within our component replacement 
programme and ways to improve security within our high-rise 
apartments in Bedford. All of these initiatives took full account 

of the social value that was being added as well as the 
sustainability of our homes and communities. Feedback  
was not just limited to physical observations, it also resulted  
in some policies and procedures being re-drafted to make 
them easier to understand and apply.

Our customers also played a significant role in helping to 
design and develop our new in-house maintenance service 
(see page 19), which launches in October 2022. A group of 
them shared what was most important when it came to 
getting items fixed, replaced or services. They also researched 
what would be ‘best practice’ and influenced the ‘look and feel’ 
of the service, an example of which was asking for vans that 
would be visible and clearly identifiable as bpha.

In addition to providing these opportunities for customers 
to provide insight, we supported our teams to help them 
capture this valuable feedback through empathy training. 
Every colleague took part with the aim of helping them  
to think ‘like’ a customer rather than ‘about’ a customer. 

Alongside making it easier to provide feedback, we provided 
customers with more options to contact us when they 
needed to about their home and community. Our new 
customer contact system, Genesys, provides greater  
channel choice and convenience for customers, through 
offering options for phone calls, emails, Facebook, Twitter, 
webchat and WhatsApp.

We also focused on improving the reliability of our contact 
channels. We introduced a more stable cloud-based platform 
for our customer portal in March 2021, ensuring zero down 
time for the 4,500 customers who access it. Mystery shopping 
of the new system has given very positive results and 
customers continue to be consulted on future enhancements. 

Connecting with customers
112,000 phone conversations
39,000 emails
2,000 webchat conversations (since July)

The Place
Our customer-facing teams identified a need for an easy, 
effective way of sharing information and getting customer 
feedback. This was in response to customers asking for 
more choice in how they engage with us. 

We launched ‘The Place’, in 2021 allowing effective and easy 
two-way communication, mirroring the choice and ease of 
their other, mainstream digital experiences.

We upload information, on a local project for example, into an 
easy-to-read format. The platform, which is simple and intuitive 
to use, allows customers to share feedback, see information 
from bpha and our relevant partners and respond to surveys, 
forums and idea boards. Where location is important, they can 
even respond to interactive maps. As well as talking with bpha 
in this way, customers can also communicate with each other 
to compare ideas, experiences and views.

Improving 
customer 
experience 
By putting customers  
at the centre of our  
goals, service design  
and decisions.
Our customers are central to everything we do, the purpose 
of our organisation. Throughout 2021/22 we continued to 
focus on providing them with the right service at the right 
time to meet and, where possible, exceed their expectations. 

Pamela, bpha customer and Resident Inspector

Michael and Greta – bpha Shared Owners
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Improving our services
Despite our best efforts, we recognise that we do not always 
get it right. We are committed to learning from our mistakes 
so our services continue to develop in ways that will make 
the biggest positive different to our customers. 

Complaints continue to be a valuable source of 
learning. Over the past year, in response to the Housing 
Ombudsman’s complaint handling code (December 2020), 
we made our complaints processes easier to follow and 
more focused on understanding, improving and learning 
from our customers’ experiences. This included introducing 
a new Complaints and Compliments module to our housing 
management system which made it easier for customers  
to detail their concerns.  

Improvements we made in response to complaints feedback 
have included:

•  More information on our website about how our tenancies 
are managed and the scope of our repairs service 

•  Keeping customers updated on appointments,  
including a new text reminder service

•   A new, clearer, guide to shared ownership staircasing 

•  A wider variety of components being carried within our 
contractors’ vans in order to ensure that more repairs  
can be completed on the first visit

While complaints provide valuable customer feedback on 
how we can improve our services, we also introduced a new 
way to drive our own continuous improvement processes. 
To do this, we introduced our ‘Cycle of Service’ process to 
systematically challenge the way we do things. This process 
is designed to help people assess what we do ‘through the 
eyes of our customer’ and is run by a series of ‘champions’ 
who work across the business. Improvements from this 
‘Cycle of Service’ approach this year included enhancing 
the new home delivery process to our shared owners. We 
will continue to apply this improvement methodology to a 
further range of our services in the coming year.

Working with our communities
We recognise that our customers live in homes that are 
based within streets and neighbourhoods that make up 
the communities that they are part of. It is important to 
us that we continue to work within these communities to 
ensure that they are thriving, sustainable environments that 
our customers can be proud to live in. We do this in many 
different ways. 

With the cost of living projected to increase for some time  
to come, many more of bpha’s customers will face the threat 
of hardship. To support these people, we have strengthened 
our Money Advice team so that help is at hand to maximise 
benefit claims, to help people with budgeting and, in some 
cases, agree other ways that we might be able to help.  
The aim is always to help people to maintain their tenancies, 
reducing the stress that comes from such challenging 
financial circumstances. This team works in two ways:  
it answers requests when people ask for help and now,  
it also looks for signals that our customers are experiencing 
problems so that they can be approached in a respectfully 
pro-active manner. This second approach is enabled through 
using data analytics models that help to identify changes to 
our customers’ payment patterns. Looking forward we see 
a growing need for this approach to support our customers. 
We now advertise these services using social media, 
hosting live Facebook drop ins and website tools to enable 
customers to understand their range of options. A total of 
1,570 customers have benefited from the work of the Money 
Advice team this year. 

All our customers have the right to live in safe, clean and 
pleasant neighbourhoods. Maintaining and enhancing living 
environments has been a continued focus over 2021/22. In 
August, bpha brought the CCTV service on seven of its high-
rise apartment sites in-house, to allow proactive monitoring 
of customer safety in priority areas. A second phase of this 
programme is rolling out this summer, before bringing all 
our CCTV monitoring in-house over the next five years. We 
have already seen quicker responses and more immediate 
support from the police when required. The feedback from our 
customers has been that they feel safer in their communities.

Another neighbourhood area of focus has been on 
improving rubbish and waste management. Overflowing 
bin stores were causing contamination on various sites, 
attracting pests and creating unpleasant living conditions for 
our customers. They were also proving inefficient and costly 
to clear, with a potential impact on customers’ future service 
charges. In response, a campaign, called Talking Trash, 
encouraging recycling, deterring fly-tipping and promoting 
proper use of bin stores has been successfully delivered, 
alleviating the issue across many of bpha’s neighbourhoods.

As well as our collective focus on supporting communities, 
every bpha colleague is also given a fully paid volunteering 
day each year. Over the past year our colleagues have read 
with local school children, delivered Christmas Hampers to 
customers identified as most in need, made calls to isolated 
residents during the pandemic, cleared and planted gardens, 
and worked with foodbanks. Whilst this work delivers direct 
benefits to our customers and their communities, it also 
ensures that more of bpha’s colleagues get direct experience 
of working with and helping our customers.

Measuring what we do
Customer feedback and data is reviewed, communicated, 
discussed, and used to prioritise our actions. This is 
particularly important to bpha’s Board and its Committees 
who seek assurance that the organisation is delivering fully 
against its social and statutory aims. 

It was disappointing that through the two waves of our 
telephone survey overall customer satisfaction was down  
3% versus the previous year. 

     Q 1&2 Q3&4 

Overall satisfaction 2021/22  72% 74%

Overall satisfaction 2020/21  77% 77%

Bpha’s Money Advice team – Jordan, Amanda and Rachel

Karen, bpha customer 

Ann, bpha customer 

bpha colleagues, Rachael and Jade

Score Score
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Whilst this drop was not statistically significant, the fall is 
taken seriously and is being responded to in a positive 
manner. Our Insights team scrutinise the feedback, sharing 
key themes to help form improvement plans across the 
business. A significant cause for the drop was customers’ 
perceptions on some aspects our repairs service, in a year 
where our contractors’ performance was badly affected 
by a number of challenges. These ranged from a lack of 
employee availability to supply chain problems exacerbated 
by Brexit and the pandemic. Whilst worse this year, it has 
been on-going problems with the use of a third-party repairs 
contractors that led bpha to prepare for the launch of its 
own in-house maintenance service in October 2022. Whilst 
we are taking nothing for granted, we are confident that 
this transition in the coming year will enable a considerable 
improvement in our customers’ experience. 

Following the launch of the Social Housing White Paper 
in 2020, we welcomed and fully engaged in the sector’s 
consultation on the proposed new Tenant Satisfaction 
Measures (TSMs) to be introduced from 2023. This included 
encouraging colleague feedback through focus groups, 
general drop-in sessions and a questionnaire open to all 
colleagues. We also fully publicised and communicated 
the opportunities for our customers to feedback on the 
proposed questions through three surveys, then included 
their responses in our overall feedback. 

The TSMs will consolidate the areas that affect the living 
experience of affordable housing customers. We applaud the 
approach and look forward to using these new measures to 
drive further service improvement over the coming years.

Doing more through our great partnerships
We continue to achieve more for our customers and 
communities by working in unison with like-minded 
partners. We select and work with partners who share our 
values, aligning on principles as well as being committed to 
achieving tangible outputs. We formed essential partnerships 
in areas including property regeneration, new home 
development, customer safety, community investment, 
sustainability and our data and systems.

Here are just some examples of our successful  
partnerships over the past year:

Public health partnerships
With a close link between housing, health and wellbeing, 
we form close partnerships with public health bodies and 
charities. This includes collaborations from sharing joint 
social media messages to grant applications. An example 
being a £6,000 grant from the Conolly Trust for health 
initiatives in Retirement Living Schemes.

We host a Community Engagement Partnership Group which 
includes partners such as the police, fire service, public health 
and local councils. Bedford Borough Council has provided 
Public Health funding, with our Retirement Living Scheme 
customers suggesting how the money should be used. 

Care partnerships
Our care partnerships help support over 800 bpha customers 
to remain independent in our Retirement Living with care 
services. Together, we make sure that our retirement living 
and supported housing residents receive services that meet 
their diverse needs. As well as ensuring care and support, the 
partnerships make sure residents do not feel isolated and can 
meet with other residents at their leisure.

Action against domestic abuse
Multiple sources indicate a considerable rise in domestic 
violence and abuse over recent years, with the pandemic 
lockdowns restricting some of the traditional avenues for 
help and support. To help address this unacceptable trend, 
we established a network of partnerships, information and 
signposting for colleagues and customers. 

We are involved in many frontline and strategic 
partnerships. These include Multi Agency Risk Assessment 
Conferences and Violence Against Women and Girls.  
We also collaborate on case conferences, problem solving 
groups and family conferences.

bpha team members, Rebecca and Nitin on their volunteering day

bpha Retirement Living customer, Peggy
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Continuing to improve our homes
We continually review funding options to help attain our 
2030 Band C and above target and to build towards our  
Net Zero ambition for 2050.

We secured £440,000 in funding via the Local Authority 
Delivery scheme (LAD), enabling retrofit improvements  
to 88 homes. LAD is a UK Government funded initiative  
to improve the energy efficiency of homes, reduce fuel 
poverty and phase out high carbon fossil fuel heating. 

We will use a variety of measures to improve the fabric of 
homes including insulating external/internal walls, cavity walls 
and the areas beneath floors. We will also fit PV panels to roofs 
to improve the overall energy efficiency of our properties.

We will continue to explore partnerships, including working 
alongside energy suppliers to access additional funding for 
efficiency measures.

Keeping customers safe
We worked closely with our contractors and suppliers  
to ensure customer safety. This includes introducing air  
quality sensors at some of our empty properties. 

Our appointments of a Building Safety Manager and a 
Building Safety Coordinator are intrinsic in helping us meet 
safety standards and the requirements of the new Building 
Safety Act. This strengthens an existing team of four Fire 
Safety Officers. We work closely with Bedfordshire Fire and 
Rescue Service and our customers on ensuring safety in all 
of our properties.

Our Asprey Compliance Management System provides 
near real-time data about the safety checks and services 
completed in our homes and buildings. As Asprey continues 
to develop it will allow customers to view the safety 
information of their home remotely via access to bpha’s 
customer portal.

Every single home 
continued to meet 
the Decent Homes 
Standard

Our commitment to make sure our  
customers live in great homes means  
investing substantially in their maintenance  
and improvement.
Our repairs service responded well after the challenges of 
the pandemic. We completed every emergency repair on 
time (over 3,000) and successfully delivered our planned 
investment programme, installing new kitchens, bathrooms, 
roofs, heating systems, windows and doors. As a result, every 
single home continued to meet the Decent Homes Standard. 
This was despite the external challenges around the supply 
of tradespeople, products, fuel and materials. 

More sustainable, efficient homes
The economic and environmental necessity for more energy 
efficient homes has never been greater. We are committed 
to as many of our homes as possible being Energy 
Performance Certificate (EPC) Band C or above by 2030.

We have made very good progress this year through our 
“fabric first - worst first - lowest regret” approach to energy 
efficiency. The approach makes sure homes are well 
insulated and reduce heat loss through the building fabric. 
It also provides a foundation for future low-carbon heating 
systems - especially important to help our customers reduce 
their carbon footprint.

This improvement work has resulted in our average 
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) rating improving 
from 74.42 to 75.05. We now have 82% of our homes that  
are band C or above. 

100% 
of fire inspections completed  
at year end

99.99%
of properties with a gas  
safety certificate

During 2021-22 we completed our programme of installing carbon monoxide detectors in every home with gas. 
This was ahead of the legislative requirement to do so, expected to come into force in October 2022.
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Our commitment  
to make sure our  
customers live in  
great homes means  
investing substantially  
in their maintenance  
and improvement.

We have a clear plan in place for those 18% of homes 
still below Band C, including prioritising enhancement 
work through stock condition surveys and EPC reports. 
Decarbonisation of our heating sources will follow  
as technology improves.

‘A’ rated homes in Northstowe, Cambridgeshire

Safety in Numbers

SAP ratings over time

575
Fire Safety Inspections

335
Fire Risk Assessments
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Continual investment in homes and people
In 2022 we spent £20.5m on major repairs and 
improvements which included new kitchens, bathrooms, 
roofs and boilers.

Our data makes sure we know when items need replacing. 
This includes surveying 20% of our homes every year. 

From next year we will be replacing key components based  
on their age and condition rather than a rolling ‘area  
based’ programme. This helps make sure we prioritise  
work correctly, spend wisely and provide a positive  
and timely service to customers.

We are also developing our existing colleagues’ skills and 
bringing in additional expertise to make our homes more 
efficient. This will include the recruitment of a Retrofit 
Accreditation Specialist, who will focus on increasing insulation 
levels in homes, keeping buildings airtight and maintaining 
adequate ventilation to reduce damp and mould.

We will work with customers on how to use new energy 
technologies, and support through our Money Advice  
and Community Engagement teams.

Regenerating Bedford’s tower blocks
Our long term regeneration programme, project Vista will 
transform 14 of our Bedford tower blocks, across six sites, 
built in the 1950s and 60s. Vista will make sure these sites are 
sustainable, great places to live well into the future.  
Our phased delivery started with Ashburnham Court,  
by Bedford train station, in October 2021.

Driven by our goal of getting our customers’ homes to at 
least an EPC Band C rating by 2030, we are providing better 
external insulation as well as installing windows and roofs. 
With new rainscreen cladding, the new external insulation will 
protect the buildings from water, reduce heat loss in the winter, 
and on hotter days, ensure homes stay cooler.

To consult and engage with residents at Ashburnham Court, 
alongside face-to-face opportunities, we used a digital 
engagement platform, ‘The Place’. Customers have proposed 
social value interventions such as communal gardens and fed 
back on preferred models of windows and terracotta cladding. 

Transforming our repairs service 
The most common service required by customers is our 
repairs service, with nearly 29,000 repairs completed during 
2021/22. We want to make sure that all our homes  
are always safe, warm and in good condition. 

Feedback from customers underpinned how having  
a more effective, efficient repairs service is vital to  
a positive experience of living in their home. Repairs affect 
our customers personally, impacting their quality of life  
and satisfaction with their home. 

As a result we are bringing the service in-house, to be 
delivered by bpha colleagues rather than contractors.

After a comprehensive consultation with customers in 2021, 
and careful planning, we are pleased that our in-house 
maintenance service will be launched in October 2022.

The new model will: 
•  Bring the repairs service closer to the customer  

and improve customers’ overall experience

•  Provide more customer choice and access to services 
through an end-to-end digital offering

•  Allow better integration and align systems to enable  
future matrix working within bpha and with partners

•  Achieve cost parity on a like for like basis with 
benchmarked market norms.

We will be bringing our services in house over three phases:

•   Phase One: Responsive repairs and empty properties  
by October 2022

• Phase Two: Electrical repairs by October 2023

•   Phase Three: Kitchens, bathrooms, minor aids  
and adaptions by October 2024.bpha Maintenance Surveyor, Gemma

bpha customer event at Box End Park Ashburnham Court, Bedford – part of our regeneration project, Vista

bpha Director of Customers and Services, 
Anna Humphries, briefing her team on 
repairs service improvements to come
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Providing urgently needed homes 
Together with investing in existing homes, we create as many 
opportunities as we can for people to live in affordable, quality 
homes. Over the last 12 months this commitment has seen 
bpha invest £50m, providing 307 new homes for local people 
and start on a further 487 plots. 

Despite an ongoing challenging operating environment, with 
planning and supply chain delays having a significant effect 
on our programme delivery, we have continued to provide 
homes for people. The determination of our teams to deliver, 
has helped provide a variety of social rent, affordable rent and 
Shared Ownership homes for new customers.

Homes for the future
We are now building our development programme back 
up and are well placed to do this. We have over 2,000 
affordable homes planned from 2023 to 2028. To offer a mix 
of options on new homes, we will also continue to offer some 
for outright sale. All our profits from sales are invested back 
into core, affordable housing.

We will continue to use several routes to meet our 
commitment to provide as many quality homes as possible. 
These include Section 106, joint ventures and regeneration. 
We are also developing our ambition for more land-led 
opportunities where we will procure sites to develop ourselves.

Our developments are underpinned by evolving 
sustainable design and building methods. We have 
increased the focus on the thermal efficiency, 
sustainability and biodiversity of our new developments 
as we continue our journey to net zero carbon and net 
environment gain.

Building more new,  
quality, sustainable homes

Daneilo and Celina at a bpha customer event

White House Park 
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Case studies

Making the most of our existing assets
Making better use of existing assets is a key part of our development strategy. An example  
is our scheme of 15 new homes for Social Rent at Dennis Court in Kempston which replaced  
a deteriorating group of buildings.

The development of the area carefully considered how to provide more value as well as great 
places to live. Work to refurbish the existing buildings would have been costly and provided a 
limited solution in an area of great housing need and where environmental and neighbourhood 
enhancements were required. 

Campbell Wharf, creating great places 
Our homes are an essential part of an area’s infrastructure, 
with design principles that help to create a sense of place and 
foster connections. During the year, we provided new homes 
at our multi-phase scheme at Campbell Wharf, Milton Keynes, 
in partnership with Crest Nicholson. It is a positive example 
of how we believe homes should contribute to a sense of 
community. The residential led scheme is complemented by 
retail and leisure facilities and a new marina.

The development’s waterside setting is proof that affordable 
living need not mean a compromise on location. On the banks 
of the Grand Union canal, it has easy access to both Milton 
Keynes Central station and the M1. Only ten minutes from 
Milton Keynes town centre, it is close to local schools and shops, 
with green open spaces surrounding the development. Once 
complete, the development will include a café, restaurant and  
a new footbridge linking both sides of the canal.

Lidlington – land led opportunities
We started the construction of 40 new homes in Lidlington, 
Central Bedfordshire, as part of our land-led programme. 
Our ambition for more land led schemes will provide us with 
increased options in developing much needed homes. The 12 
affordable rent and 28 shared ownership homes have been 
designed to be in keeping with the look of the village and 
provide a great place to live with a real community focus, with 
large green communal spaces for residents to enjoy. 

Customers will benefit from generous gardens. 10% of 
the energy demand will come from renewable resources 
through photovoltaic panels. Secure cycle parking has been 
provided for every home. A rural village feel will include  
a natural habitat for wildlife including a pond.

Dennis Court after improvement work

Dennis Court before improvement work

Campbell Wharf, Milton Keynes Campbell Wharf, Milton Keynes
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Fen Drayton
We are excited to deliver a scheme that has sustainability  
at its heart.
Our proposed rural scheme at Fen Drayton in South Cambridgeshire will feature 
considerable environmental enhancements to meet as far as possible, the 
requirements of the Future Homes and Building Standards, ahead of this becoming 
mandatory in 2025. The Standard will ensure that homes built from 2025 produce 
75-80% less carbon emissions than homes under current regulations through a 
more thermally efficient building fabric specification and the use of photovoltaic 
panels and air-source heat pumps. Other measures will include:

•  Biodiversity – A Construction Ecological Management Plan will ensure  
high standards during the build. The scheme will include native planting,  
integrated bat and bird boxes and hedgehog connectivity measures 

•  The external lighting will minimise the effects of light pollution on  
the surrounding area and will protect nearby wildlife habitat

•  Transport – Electric vehicle charging points and cycle parking facilities  
will be provided with a footpath that links the scheme to the adjacent  
village hall and playing field 

•  Landscaping will include a community orchard and sustainable  
drainage methods 

Selling homes
A strong sales performance saw 205 Shared Ownership 
homes sold, with many of these being sold off plan. At the 
end of the year, just 24 shared ownership homes remained.

Staircasing, Rent to Homebuy, asset sales and Right to Buy 
generated a surplus of £11.7m which will all be reinvested  
to provide new homes and services.

Our teams ensure that prospective customers receive 
the best experience at each stage of their home-buying 
journey, which is facilitated by the information we store 
on our CRM system. We have also introduced a customer 
satisfaction tracker, helping us respond to feedback in real 
time and allowing us to continually improve processes.  
We were encouraged that 90% of new customers said  
they would recommend bpha to a friend.

Carmen – ‘A step forward’ through shared 
ownership
Carmen rented a house in in Milton Keynes for a decade 
before deciding to invest in a home of her own. While it  
was difficult to get a mortgage, shared ownership offered  
a chance of getting on the property ladder.

She started saving and invested in an ISA to get a deposit  
for a home in Broughton for her and her sons, buying a  
60% share.

Being a shared owner with bpha means Carmen’s monthly 
outgoings for her home are less than 70% of the cost of 
renting a similar property locally. This, together with the 
security of tenure which shared ownership provides made  
it a great choice for Carmen who can purchase more shares 
in the future should she wish.

“I knew shared ownership was the only way for me to get  
a mortgage and take a step towards to my family having its 
own home. I called bpha and had a look around the following 
week. They called soon after to say it was mine if I wanted it. 
I was delighted! Being a first-time buyer, I needed a five per 
cent deposit and realised the ISA would help me get one.  
I hope to buy more of my home over time.”

Carlton, Bedfordshire

bpha Shared Ownership customer, Carmen
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In what was a fast-moving, competitive employee market 
in 2021/22, our colleagues’ feedback again led to bpha 
being recognised as a Great Place to Work (GPTW) for 
the third year running. GPTW is a global organisation that 
apply data and insights from millions of colleagues working 
in around 10,000 organisations every year to benchmark 
their experience. We were also very encouraged by the high 
percentage of our colleagues (87%) that again chose to 
engage in the survey, responding to questions on areas such 
as leadership, wellbeing, competitive terms and conditions, 
and recognition. As well as being the only Housing 
Association in the large employer category, we were also 
one of the few organisations awarded GPTW’s Wellbeing 
Excellence award, due to our employee initiatives and how 
we helped our colleagues through the pandemic.

Remaining a Great Place to Work
Our Organisation Development Programme continued, 
including embedding our values, establishing our new  
hybrid ways of working, developing our people, maintaining 
a strong employee voice and being an inclusive and 
welcoming employer.

Embedding our values
To remain a great employer in an ever-changing world  
we refreshed our values with our colleagues and customers. 
We embedded our values into the end-to-end business 
processes including our policies, employee performance 
cycle, employee rewards, recruitment and onboarding.  
This enabled us to encourage the right behaviours and  
ways of working. Our refreshed values are: 

• We take responsibility
• We show empathy
• We are ambitious 
• We are better together

Employee-led new flexible ways of working 
In the summer of 2021, bpha colleagues helped design our 
New Ways of Working to create productive, flexible, hybrid 
working options, while also focusing on improving customer 
experience. Offering the best of both worlds (home and 
office) colleagues have been empowered to choose where 
and how they work, within agreed local service principles. 
The results have been very positive with more emphasis on 
outcome-focused work rather than a traditional ‘one size fits 
all’ approach. To support this, we reimagined our head office 
to create more collaboration spaces including connecting 
pods and hot desk areas. 

A great employer, attracting  
and retaining talent in a value-led 
and successful organisation

bpha team members Janette, Louisa and Mark

bpha customer and services team 
conference

bpha team member, Saviour

Sue and Sophie, bpha colleagues
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Case studies

A strong colleague voice 
In order to stay in touch with our workforce and to help drive improvements, we 
have been running a series of colleague groups. These groups provided us with  
rich insights throughout the year to inform our people and engagement plans.

Examples of colleague engagement forums are:

•  Our active employee representative group provides a colleague voice, with 
members from all areas of bpha. As well as having formal responsibilities, the 
group is active in supporting our people and wellbeing engagement programme, 
as well as social and recognition events 

•  Our Great Place to Work (GPTW) Champions promote what’s unique and special 
about working at bpha to colleagues in teams across the business. They provide 
rigour in ensuring the colleague survey feedback is recognised and included  
in local team action plans

•  Our Mental Health First Aiders and Domestic Abuse Responders are specially 
trained teams, who give their time, guidance and advice to colleagues and raise 
awareness of these important subjects across the business.

A fair and inclusive bpha
We value a diverse and equal culture, that represents and nurtures a wide range 
of ideas and views. To support our commitments and key principles, we recruited 
a dedicated equality, diversity and inclusion (ED&I ) Lead in 2021. Our programme 
included unconscious bias training and listening groups, to help ensure we are 
inclusive, fair and open in all that we do. 

We have introduced an ED&I Executive sponsor, cross business strategic  
and operational groups and a programme of activity and conversation. 

Other activities to make sure colleagues continue to be treated with  
dignity and respect:

•  An externally led session encouraged our leaders to consider and share their 
own experiences around inclusion and prejudice, and to apply a broader 
perspective when making decisions

•  Language Guides to educate and inform colleagues of do’s  
and don’ts and the background behind terms

•  Webinars on the experiences of people from different backgrounds  
and identities, began with one on trans and non-binary inclusion

•  Inclusion groups being established to share thoughts,  
experiences, ideas and challenges 

•  Equality Impact Assessments and related training to encourage an ED&I  
lens on what we do

•  Encouraging diversity in interview panels and panellists outside the immediate 
business area. In addition, a menu of ED&I and Values recruitment questions are used.

Holly 
bpha gave me the opportunity to start my career as a 
trainee surveyor, spending a day a week at Bedford College. 
This gave me the platform to achieve a permanent surveyor 
position where I worked with our voids team both out on 
site and in the office. I progressed to a project officer role 
within the planned maintenance team and was further 
supported to do some more career-specific learning. This 
time I completed a HNC in Construction Management on a 
part time, distance learning course. The latest stage of my 
journey was promotion to a project manager role! 

Lianne Developing our people 
Remaining a Great Place to Work, and attracting and 
retaining good people, means colleagues being clear on how 
they personally develop while making a great contribution 
in their role. Over the year we internally promoted 33 
colleagues, including from “entry” level roles within our 
customer contract centre and Help to Buy teams. Two  
of our colleagues, Lianne and Holly share their ongoing 
personal development stories below:

Lianne
I have had a successful career journey since joining bpha 
almost 12 years ago, and the business has supported me 
throughout. This included achieving my CIH Level 4 and a 
Certificate in Leadership and Management. I transitioned from 
a part time Voids and Allocation Officer, to Housing Officer,  
to Team Leader to Area Housing Manager. From there,  
I progressed to my first senior management appointment, 
Communications Centre Manager, managing a large team 
and reporting to the Director of Customer and Services.

Anastassia, our new Equality,  
Diversity and Inclusion Lead 

LianneHolly
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New systems – One Vision 
Our One Vision systems’ investment programme delivered several landmark 
improvements in 2021/22, greatly enhancing our customer and colleague 
experience and making bpha a more efficient business.

By aligning our customer and property data, the programme creates one view 
of the customer and their home. It involves changing our systems, processes, 
and services, while utilising new state-of-the-art cloud technologies. 

This includes giving customers the choice of speaking to one of the bpha team 
or engaging through digital self-service via the customer portal. Customers see 
the same data viewed by our colleagues, including areas such as live  
rent statements and gas safety and electrical information.

Our new digital solution to bring our repairs services in house, will help  
optimise the service and improve our customer communications for every 
repair. Integrated into One Vision, customers will be able to request and track 
repairs via the customer portal.

Closer to our customers
Customers are playing an important role in helping to design the functionality 
of the customer portal, with new aspects being added continually.

In 2021, we rebuilt our customer contact centre systems as part of our One 
Vision strategy. Through new technology, we extended customers’ channel 
choice, which now includes telephone, email, webchat, Messenger, Twitter and 
WhatsApp. You can read more about this in our Customer review on page 10.

Our contact centre team now have the flexibility to create 90 separate service 
actions on behalf of the customer, including areas such as safeguarding and 
wellbeing. We will continue to expand these to include repairs requests.

Customer feedback provides us with a valuable indicator of where we need to 
improve. Our Customer Complaints and Compliments module was introduced 
in January 2022, making sure all feedback is captured and acted upon.

Updating customer data – anytime, anywhere
Having effective, unified systems is only of value if they are accessible  
at the point where decisions are made alongside our customers. 
We developed new microapp functionality for mobile devices as part of 
One Vision. Our retirement living colleagues can now collect critical support 
requirements regardless of the availability of wifi or telephone connectivity, 
automatically updating One Vision. We will be using more microapps 
throughout the programme. 

Investing in systems and 
data to give customers choice, 
be more efficient and build 
successful ways of working

Bpha team members, Charlie, Tegan, Gemma and Cara
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Protecting customers, their data and homes
We will continue to invest time and resources in making sure 
our colleagues and customers are protected from cybercrime. 

Our new customer portal establishes a unique identity  
for each customer, which is stored securely in the Microsoft 
Cloud. This is an essential gateway to access digital services. 
We are also building systems for customers to specify  
a confidential memorable word. We will include letters 
from the memorable word in our individual customer 
communications, including by our repairs specialists  
to prove their identity at customers’ front doors. 

2021 also saw us deploy a new system to manage safety 
compliance checks for gas, electricity, Legionella and 
asbestos. It ensures safety checks are completed to 
schedule and actions are completed quickly. This key data 
is integrated into One Vision, allowing customers to see the 
safety status of their homes.

Supporting colleagues and customers through 
and beyond the pandemic 
bpha’s new ways of working, launched in September 2021, 
supported all our colleagues to work from locations where 
they could be most productive. For many, this means  
a hybrid solution where they can work both from their  
home and from the office.

We invested in new laptops, desks, chairs, and monitors 
to ensure effective and safe working spaces. To support 
our office space being used differently, we introduced the 
innovative micro application for desk and car park bookings 
and interactive touch screen maps for room management 
and wayfinding. Our meeting rooms have been upgraded  
to ensure remote working colleagues have a strong  
presence in the room when decisions are made.

Throughout the pandemic we have prioritised customer 
support and introduced One Vision modules for Anti Social 
Behaviour (ASB) management (including a specific Domestic 
Abuse module), Safeguarding and a support module for 
our Retirement Living customers. We also stepped up our 
communications capabilities including a text messaging 
module to keep customers informed. 

Staying agile
Our internal programmers continued developing software to 
accelerate the One Vision programme. This has helped us to 
remain fleet of foot in a rapidly changing environment and 
able to adapt our programmes when required.  
In addition to customer input, bpha colleagues contribute  
to the design of our new systems, from the earliest concepts 
to the point of delivery. 

Humera, bpha team member

Our bpha Fire Safety team 
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Operating and  
financial review 

Our development and sales business delivered an exceptional 
result with record property sales at £59.0m (2021: £39.9m). 
Continued strong performance from our core business, 
which generated a surplus of £46.9m, gives us significant 
financial resources to continue to invest in our existing homes 
and in the development of new homes, despite the ongoing 
uncertainty in the economic environment.
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Our organisation delivers across two distinct areas: The core 
operating business which primarily comprises the stable 
and resilient social housing lettings; and our more cyclical 
development and sales business; 

bpha’s operating surplus grew to £62.1m (2021: £59.5m) and the 
underlying surplus from operations after interest costs grew to 
£28.3m (2021: £25.1m). The total comprehensive income for the 
year was £50.3m (2021: £27.2m). During the year, this excellent 
performance has contributed to an improvement in our credit 
rating outlook from negative to stable, and our financial viability 
rating improved to V1.

The total comprehensive income for the year has been 
impacted by a £20m swing in the actuarial movement. As a 
result of continued volatility, during the year a consultation has 
taken place with the current members of the defined benefit 
pension scheme. Following this consultation, it has been decided 
to close the scheme to the current members on 30 September 
2022. This decision has been taken by the Board to reduce the 
risk created by the fluctuations to the defined benefit pension 
scheme deficit.

We continue to see strong and steady cashflow from our core 
operating business which this year improved to £64.2m (2021: 
£60.2m). During the year we took the opportunity to terminate 
an interest swap derivative, and this will improve our interest 
payments in the longer term. Consequently, cash holding on  
the balance sheet has decreased to £40.8m (2021: £65.5m).  
Our operating cash flow net of capital repairs and maintenance 
expenditure continues to cover our interest costs comfortably 
(excluding interest swap derivative termination payments), 
contributing a cash surplus of £5.7m (2021: £9.2m) to bolster 
our development spend and give us resilience. 

Property sales have recovered following the easing of 
Governmental pandemic restrictions with strong contributions 
from shared ownership staircasing in addition to first tranche 
sales. Turnover for the development and sales business of 
£59.0m was £19.1m higher than last year. The core operating 
business continues to be efficient at delivering a strong and 
stable financial performance with an operating surplus of 
£46.9m (2021: £47.7m). This reduction in operating surplus 
compared to the prior year of £0.8m is as a result of a £1.2m 
reduction in income from Help to Buy. 

Repairs and maintenance spend of £35.3m is £9.7m higher 
than last year when our service was reduced to emergency 
and urgent repairs only for several months due to the 
pandemic. However, the pandemic combined with Brexit has 
resulted in some issues with the supply of materials and labour 
which is beginning to feed inflationary pressures.

Last year the pandemic impacted our development business. 
This year has seen a recovery. However, the development 
programme remains behind expectations due to the same 
labour and material shortages that have impacted our repairs 
service. Consequently, development spend during the year 
of £52.4m is only £6.9m higher than last year. Although our 
development programme continues to be delayed, as the 
construction sector struggles to get back to full capacity, we 
have the financial resources to ensure that we can continue  
to pursue our ambitious development programme and to 
invest in the maintenance of existing homes.

The net value of our housing assets has continued to rise, 
increasing by £34.3m during the year, driven by a net 154 unit 
increase in our property portfolio (new homes completions 
less asset sales). We now have 19,618 units that we own 
or manage and continue to invest in our development 
programme to increase our portfolio. Our net debt has 
increased during the year by £12.4m driven by a decrease 
in cash holding which has been partly offset by a reduction 
in borrowing. These changes combine to deliver a steadily 
decreasing gearing metric (see graph below).

The Core Operating Business
Core operating turnover has increased by £1.9m compared 
with the same period last year due to a combination of a rent 
rise and the addition of new properties into the portfolio (307 
new affordable homes). Rental cash collections continue to be 
carefully monitored and managed as we move into a period 
when we expect that cost-of-living increases will further 
impact our customers. 

We achieved a core operating margin of 41.8% (2021: 43.3%), 
comfortably ahead of our target level of 40%.

The Development and Sales Business
This year has seen a pickup in sales activity which has resulted 
in record property sales of £59.0m (2021: 39.9m). The number 
of first tranche shared ownership units sold during the year was 
205 (2021: 124). Fixed asset sales (primarily shared ownership 
staircasing) and private sales together with the first tranche 
shared ownership sales, delivered a total surplus of £14.9m 
(2021: £10.5m).

The margin on sales fell during 2022 due to a £3m 
impairment of land in our Bushmead subsidiary.

Julian Pearce, Chief Financial Officer

Three Year Gearing

The Core Operating Business The Development and Sales Business
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Treasury 
We maintain strict targets to ensure that sufficient liquidity is 
available to fund ongoing and planned activities. At 31 March 
2022, £856m of funding was drawn against total facilities of 
£1,099m (includes £3m overdraft).

Our undrawn facilities remained at £243m with immediately 
available cash reducing to £33m meaning that our overall 
financial resources still remained strong at £276m. During the 
year our liquidity headroom (made up of undrawn facilities 
which are fully available to draw within 48 hours, plus cash  
on deposit) also fell slightly to £236m.

This strong liquidity means that all future committed 
developments can be funded from existing facilities, without the 
need to raise new funding. As detailed in the group cashflow 
statement, strong operational cashflow and sales in the year 
has more than covered our development spend. During the 
year our net debt has increased to £810m (2021: £797m) due  
to the decrease in cash which has been partially offset by  
a reduction in borrowing.

Our loan covenants are predominantly based upon interest 
coverage, asset cover and net debt per unit ratios. Covenants 
are regularly monitored in accordance with our governance 
framework and were comfortably met throughout the year.

In October 2022 Standard & Poor’s reaffirmed our credit  
rating as A+ and upgraded outlook of the rating to ‘stable’.

Dennis Court, Kempston
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Board

Overall corporate strategy
Setting VfM strategy

Risk appetite setting
Business plan and budget approval

Key value metrics and indicators
Investment appraisal criteria setting

Development and assets committee
Audit and risk committee

Group treasury committee
Customer committee
Remuneration and  

nominations committee 

Asset investment decisions
Treasury strategy

Customer objectives and feedback
People Strategy

Executive leadership

Budget setting and monitoring
Business plan delivery

Project benefits realisation
Value and efficiency culture

Senior management
Operational teams

VFM delivery at  
departmental level

Performance  
management

Strategic objectives value for money

Operational value and efficiency framework

Value and efficiency culture

Value for money
The Board takes responsibility for Value for Money (VfM) by:
• Setting objectives and targets
• Monitoring performance and results
• Approving the use of resources through the budget and business plan.

We generate value through delivering services to our customers, maintaining 
quality homes, building new homes, and supporting thriving communities  
by being increasingly efficient. 
In support of this, we have four interdependent goals:
• The protection and efficient utilisation of existing assets
•  The delivery of well defined, appropriate services to a range  

of tenant and customer groups
• The development of new homes
• The protection and development of our financial capability.

After consideration of the core VfM measures set by the Regulator of Social Housing 
and of other key performance indicators, the Board has concluded that we have 
been successful in delivering value for money. Throughout the year the organisation 
maintained tight control of costs, invested in improvements to service delivery and 
existing stock, as well as delivering new homes.

We have continued to achieve a strong performance across 
a range of indicators. All measures outlined below have been 
benchmarked against a comparable group of 15 housing 
associations (peer group) in terms of size and geography, 
alongside the national averages. This comparison is based 
on the most recent available information published by the 
Regulator of Social Housing for the year ending 31 March 2021.

These measures have been mandated by the Regulator of 
Social Housing, including the definition of the measure, which 
sometimes differs to measures elsewhere in the financial 
statements and to our financial covenants. 

bpha Board meeting 
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Reinvestment % 
Reinvestment % measures our investment in the acquisition and development 
of new properties plus our investment in maintaining existing properties as a 
proportion of the total value of our housing properties. Last year due to lockdown 
restrictions hampering spend on new stock and capital repairs to existing stock, 
our reinvestment performance fell to 4.4%, just above the bottom quartile for 
our peer group. This year has seen improved performance at 5.7%. However, 
investment in new and existing stock remains behind target due to labour and 
materials shortages and general market conditions.
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New home supply (social) %
The delivery of new affordable homes is dependent on the timing of development 
schemes and may not reflect the level of investment during the period. During the 
year we delivered a further 307 affordable homes built or acquired which is 59 less 
than last year, due to labour and materials shortages causing delays which have 
meant we have missed our target. Even so, the delivery of 1.7% new social home 
supply this year is above our peer group and sector median performance. 

Gearing % 
Our level of gearing, measured as the proportion of debt to the book value of 
housing, shows that we are making use of our assets to raise funds for investment 
while maintaining a sustainable level of debt. This reflects our objectives of investing 
in both new and existing homes, and we expect this to remain relatively high 
compared with the sector and our peers. Our gearing results are in line with last 
year and with target.
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bpha homes under construction
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Headline social housing cost per unit £ 
Our headline social housing cost per unit has increased compared to the prior 
year by £600 to £3,771. This change has been driven by increased repairs and 
maintenance spend compared to the prior year when activity was reduced due  
to the pandemic. Our performance remains in line with both the sector and peer 
group median but is slightly lower than our target for the year.

EBITDA MRI interest rate cover % 
EBITDA MRI is a measure of cashflow, and this shows that our earnings continue 
to exceed our interest charges by a margin, considerably exceeding our funding 
covenants. Our performance is between the median and lower quartile compared to 
our peers and is just below the lower quartile compared to the sector. This performance 
reflects our long-term track record of delivering new homes supported by higher 
gearing. Our performance is worse than the prior year, but better than our target.
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In line with our strategy, we are now developing housing for sale and have several 
schemes which are being developed by Bushmead Homes (our housebuilding 
subsidiary). Currently these schemes are at the build stage, and we are not expecting 
handovers to commence until the financial year ending 31 March 2024.
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ROCE %
Our return on capital employed is better than the top quartile for our close peers 
and for the sector, reflecting our control of costs and the effective use of our 
existing assets to generate funds for reinvestment. Our performance is better  
than both prior year and target. 
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Operating margin (overall) % 
Our overall operating margin remains consistently high but is below our target due to 
lower margins in our Shared Ownership Sales. This performance remains comfortably 
above the top end of the higher quartile against both peers and the sector, reflecting 
our high levels of efficiency. This measure can be impacted by the volume of sales 
arising in the development programme which may differ from year to year, but we 
always aim to ensure that our cost controls free funds for greater investment in new 
and existing homes.

Operating margin (SHL) % 
The margin on our social housing lettings remains broadly consistent with the prior 
year and with our target and is above the top quartile against the sector and our  
peer group.
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Governance Report 
2022
Our Board drives our social purpose whilst maintaining high standards of governance and 
accountability. It meets quarterly to focus on operational performance. During this financial  
year we also met on a further five occasions to consider our future strategy and business plan. 

The bpha Board is made up of seven non-executive 
members and four executive members. The Board regularly 
reviews its membership in the light of its organisational 
strategy to ensure it has the right mix of skills, qualifications 
and experience to meet the challenges of the future. The 
current membership is believed to provide a suitable 
mix of direct insight and control, balanced with effective 
independent challenge.

Equality and Inclusion
We are committed to treating people fairly and with 
respect, promoting equality of opportunity, and a culture 
that is inclusive for both residents and colleagues. Strong 
governance provides the foundation for this, and we adopted 
and comply with the National Housing Federation’s 2020 
Code of Governance. We recognise that we have more to do, 
particularly in ensuring that our Board is representative  
of the diversity of the communities we serve. 

Managing risk
The Board has a responsibility to its customers and other 
stakeholders for the systems of internal control and risk 
management. It meets with the Audit and Risk Committee to 
consider its risk appetite and the principal risks to its strategic 
delivery. Providing a high level of assurance, our system of 
internal control has been designed to identify and manage 
those material risks which could adversely affect the delivery 
of our strategic objectives and the system receives regular 
scrutiny though our Audit and Risk Committee. Our principal 
risks are set out in the Risk and Assurance report.

An effective Board
The effectiveness of our Board is vital to our strategic delivery 
and in September 2021 we held an externally led Board 
effectiveness review as part of our commitment to best 
practice principles and continuous improvement. 

We were pleased to welcome Katherine Horrell as our new 
Chair of Group Treasury Committee. Katherine brings a 
wealth of experience having worked in Corporate Treasury 
and Finance for over 20 years. 

We have a strong process to identify any conflicts of interests 
and contain this information in the biographies of the Board 
members on our website. Each Board member is required  
to update their declaration for any conflicts of interest at least 
annually and declare any conflicts with any agenda items  
at each Board meeting.

We operate a unitary Board with a positive culture of 
openness and accountability. Our three Executive Board 
members provide organisational knowledge and insight, 
the non-executive members provide constructive challenge 
and an external perspective. Our independent committee 
members bring additional specialist skills to their respective 
committees. Information about the appointment of new Board 
members and the diversity, skills and attributes of all our 
Board members can be found on our website. 

The Board works through its committee structure and each 
committee provides the Board with detailed scrutiny and 
assurance on matters within its remit. Details of our committee 
structure and the work of each committee throughout the 
year can be found in this report. 

As a social housing provider, we are subject to regulation by 
the Regulator of Social Housing. We retained our status as  
a G1 organisation and our viability improved to V1 following 
our In Depth Assessment (IDA) at the end of the year. And  
are fully compliant with the Regulator’s Governance and 
Financial Viability Standards.

Non Executive Director, Bob Tattar and CEO Kevin Bolt 
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Board and committees 
Year ended 31 March 2022
Non-Executive Directors

Paul Leinster 
Chair of the Board 

Ian Ailles  
Senior Independent Director 
and Chair of Audit and  
Risk Committee 

  

Paul High 
Non-Executive Director  
and Chair of Development 
and Assets Committee 

    

Katherine Horrell 
Non-Executive Director  
and Chair of Group  
Treasury Committee 
and Development and Asset 
Committee 
(appointed 1 July 2021) 

 

Geraldine O’Sullivan 
Non-Executive Director 
and Chair of Customer 
Committee 

    

Shirley Pointer 
Non-Executive Director and 
Chair of Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee 

    

Bob Tattar  
Non-Executive Director 

  

Company Secretary
Philippa Spratley 
Company Secretary

Director of Governance  
and Compliance

Key
 Audit and Risk Committee
 Development and Assets Committee
 Group Treasury Committee
  Remunerations and Nominations Committee
  Customer Committee

Executive Directors

Kevin Bolt 
Chief Executive Officer

Julian Pearce  
Chief Financial Officer

Jeff Astle 
Executive Director of 
Development and Sales

Executive Team Members

Paul Cook 
Director of Property Services 
and Compliance

Anna Humphries  
Director of Customers  
and Services

Eddie Kelly  
Director of External Affairs 

Adrian Moore 
Director of IT

Gosia Motler 
Director of Strategy and 
Corporate Finance

Lindsay Todd  
Director of HR and  
Employee Engagement

Cliff Broadhurst 
Independent Member of 
Group Treasury Committee 
and Non-Executive Director 
Bushmead Homes 

Malcolm Zack 
Independent Member of 
Audit and Risk Committee 

Committee Members
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Yvette, bpha customer and Resolve Group member

bpha team members

The Committee is focused on making sure that bpha delivers 
the objectives of the Social Housing White Paper and ensures 
that its services are inclusive and accessible. It considers the 
impact of digital delivery on accessibility, whilst recognising 
that for some this may not be an option. It recognises the 
excellent work that our money advice and community 
engagement teams do in providing services to our customers

Customer safety is an ongoing priority, and the Committee 
regularly consider matters which impact our customers’ 
safety and enjoyment of their homes, including issues around 
disrepair, anti-social behaviour and safeguarding. 

There are ongoing financial challenges for many of our 
customers. The Committee has considered the impact of the 
rent review, ensuring that the Board recognises and makes 
provision for those most impacted, while balancing the wider 
needs of the business. The impact of fuel poverty is at the 
forefront of our minds, as we develop our environmental 
strategy and work towards a zero-carbon future.

Customer Committee
The Customer Committee ensures that the customer 
experience is at the heart of our decision-making process. 
It focuses on the human impact of the decisions we make, 
taking time to learn from the real-life experiences of 
our customers, both positive and negative. It hears from 
customers directly and through formal customer insight and 
feedback reports. During the year, it has welcomed members 
of our Resolve complaints feedback group, who provided 
an excellent and valuable customer insight into some of the 
areas where we could improve our service. You can read 
more about this in our Customer section on page 10.

Yvette Hutchinson, is a bpha customer in Cambridge  
and a member of our Resolve Group.

“I joined Resolve, a representative 
bpha customer group, to help 
make sure customer feedback 
leads to improvements. Resolve 
gives customers the opportunity 
to understand the cogs of the 
organisation, so as well as improving 
our immediate experiences we can 
also influence bpha’s ambition. It’s 
been refreshing to see bpha act on 
our feedback. We’ve affected some 
positive changes. Examples include 
establishing empathy training across 
the business and removing pain 
points by assessing complaints. We 
work with the Board and employees 
to make sure customer improvements 
continue to be the nitty gritty as well 
as the future focus of bpha.”
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Remuneration and Nominations Committee
The Remuneration and Nominations Committee is responsible 
for confirming an appropriate strategy is in place to ensure 
the Group has employees with the skills, qualifications, and 
expertise to deliver its Corporate Strategy. This year the 
Committee has spent time considering the strategic impacts 
of a challenging employee market and how these can be 
mitigated. It closely monitors our policies, to help ensure that 
bpha is a desirable employer with a value-led culture, provides 
opportunities for employee development and provides  
a competitive pay and benefits package.

It has paid particular attention this year to promoting the need 
for a diverse workforce, recognising the value that this has in 
driving an effective organisation. It has regularly considered our 
progress in developing our strategic plan in this area, working 
to ensure that our culture is welcoming and inclusive. It also 
focuses on maintaining high employee engagement and 
wellbeing, through our hybrid working model.

The Committee provides oversight to ensure that the Board is 
effective and appropriately skilled and leads the process for 
Board appointments.

Development and Assets Committee
The Development and Assets Committee focuses on the 
quality of existing homes and the provision of new ones.

It’s been a challenging year for the delivery of new homes  
with delays as a result of the pandemic and planning issues.  
It has focused attention this year on mitigating the challenges 
of future delivery, considering particularly the opportunities  
to work in partnership.

It helps make sure that existing customers enjoy their current 
homes and considers the adequacy of investment in homes, 
ensuring that high standards are maintained.

It strengthened its focus on environmental sustainability, to 
achieve our ambition of carbon neutrality in homes by 2050. 
An updated asset strategy will link to our environmental and 
development strategies with specific environmental goals.

The Committee continues to focus on the safety of our homes 
and regularly considers reports on asset safety.

Group Treasury Committee
The Group Treasury Committee provides advice to the 
Board on the treasury and financial implications of the 
Group’s Corporate Strategy and business plans.  
This includes providing assurance on the annual treasury 
report, plan, and management policy. It also oversees 
quarterly treasury reports and monitors key ratios and 
marked-to-market fluctuations. 

In addition, along with Audit and Risk Committee, 
the Committee assures the assumptions behind the 
organisation’s stress testing. It reviews the Group’s business 
plan and tests the financing and treasury assumptions 
contained in that analysis. 

The Committee also actively considers treasury risk, under 
the Board’s agreed risk appetite areas (endorsed by the 
Committee) and provides assurance against changes to 
the development hurdle rate with Development and Asset 
Committee.

The Committee also oversaw significant one-off activity 
during the year, that included:

•  The breakage of a £101m (notional) Barclay’s interest  
rate swap

•  Conversion of the bpha’s LIBOR denominated loan and 
swap agreements from LIBOR to SONIA references in 
preparation of the cessation of LIBOR publication

•  Review of the terms on which pension arrangements  
could be changed to remove future accruals in the  
defined benefit pension scheme and review of the  
Deferred Debt Arrangement governing the repayment  
of the remaining deficit

•  A review of proposals to “flex” the target hurdle rates 
and asset cover ratios on key strategic development 
opportunities.

Subsidiary companies
The Group has one wholly-owned trading subsidiary, 
Bushmead Homes Limited. Its role is to support the Group’s 
Corporate Strategy in delivering homes for affordable 
and private sale. Bushmead is a commercial subsidiary 
governed as part of the Group – as such it has not adopted 
a separate code of governance.

Bushmead Homes Limited has a 25% interest in Gog Magog 
LLP which develops homes for outright sale and affordable 
residential homes for sale to registered providers on the 
Ninewells site, in south Cambridgeshire.

The Group also has a special purpose vehicle - bpha 
Finance plc - which was established for the purpose of 
issuing bonds.

bpha also owns a 50% share in the Oxfordshire Care 
Partnership and the Gloucestershire Care Partnership – joint 
venture companies that provide care services to Oxfordshire 
and Gloucestershire County Councils through a sub-contract 
with the Order of St John’s Care Trust.

Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee is appointed by the Board 
from its Non-Executive members. An independent member, 
Malcolm Zack brings specialist knowledge and skills in risk 
management and internal audit.

Its focus this year has been on reviewing our risk and 
assurance frameworks and maturing these in the light  
of a disrupted external operating environment and sector 
challenges to make sure bpha is continuing to provide 
good quality homes to those who need them; tackling 
environmental sustainability; maintaining and improving 
building safety; improving housing supply; and meeting the 
aspirations of customers. To this end it has met on three 
additional occasions to review our assurance model at 
second and third line and also held our annual risk day.

Customer and employee safety is a priority, and our 
Committee provides overall assurance to the Board on  
health and safety matters. It has reviewed how this assurance  
is provided and has sought additional assurance from other 
committees, who in turn maintain detailed scrutiny within  
their area of remit.

At regular quarterly meetings, it continues to receive 
assurance around operational risk and considers the strategic 
implications, whilst receiving regular reporting and assurance 
from our internal auditors. It has also scrutinised the plans 
for delivery of our in-house maintenance service, receiving 
assurance from an external third party on progress. 

Our external auditors regularly attend meetings and the 
Committee continues to review their appointment, and 
consider their independence in addition to reviewing  
annual and half year financial statements.

bpha homes under construction, Houghton Regis
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Risk report
Over the past year, we have matured how we 
manage strategic and operational risks, to reflect 
the changes in our operating environment. 
Our organisational risk profile has changed, due to a more challenging external 
environment including shortages of materials, skills and labour. This has caused 
some delivery challenges and some inflationary pressures on our services.  
At the same time, we have considered the impact on customers’ ability to pay  
for necessities, including rent and service charges.

We welcome the changes in the Building Safety Act and will ensure we are 
adequately resourced to meet both the requirements of the Act and the needs and 
expectations of our customers. This goes beyond traditional health and safety.  
The pandemic has shown us the ongoing importance of investing in communities 
both directly and through strong partnerships. 

We continue to invest in the fabric of existing homes. We recognise that there 
is a challenge in building homes in a sustainable way, while also protecting the 
environment. We will build new homes to meet the Government’s net zero targets.

Providing high quality, sustainable homes is impacted by the competitive 
environment for land and new homes. The Government’s First Homes initiatives 
will further restrict supply to the affordable housing sector, whilst difficulties in the 
planning process could reduce the viability of land-led schemes. We will balance 
these factors in continuing our commitment to supply affordable homes.  
To this end, the Board has increased its risk appetite for strategic, environmentally 
sustainable schemes.

In an environment of increasing risk, we have appointed a dedicated and 
experienced Risk Manager, and through this new office, we make sure our  
internal controls drive compliance and our mitigants reduce our risk. 

Risks that affect bpha’s long term strategic objectives are identified by the Board 
through a dedicated annual risk day and are monitored continuously throughout 
the year by Audit and Risk Committee.

Helping our customers “love where they live” by 
working in successful partnerships with others

Risk
We are unable to deliver quality and value for money services 
to our customers through our partner relationships.

Impact
•  Inflation on the cost of materials impacts the cost-of-service 

delivery throughout the supply chain

• Lack of available skills throughout the supply chain

•  Shortages and cost pressures leading to poor quality  
service delivery and/or material cost increases

• Failure to manage and hold our suppliers to account

•  Failure to engage with partner agencies and customers

Mitigations
•  Build close relationships with partner agencies  

and customers

• Expanding supplier base

• Monitoring service delivery and financial viability

• Bringing our responsive repairs services in-house

Great customer experience - customers  
at centre of our goals, service design  
and decisions

Risk
We fail to deliver services that keep customers safe  
and meet quality expectations. 

Impact
•  Not sufficiently engaging with customers to understand 

expectations and review service delivery – proposed service 
level is unacceptable to customers 

•  Engaging with customers in a way that is not inclusive 

•  Financial capacity limits our ability to provide desired  
level of service

•  Homes are not designed and maintained to required safety 
and quality standards, leading to homes which are unsafe,  
in a poor state of repair, uncomfortable or unaffordable 

Mitigations
•  Investment in better systems and self-service to provide 

more customer choice and convenience

•  Customer engagement through multiple channels

•  Continued collaboration with customers on in-house 
Maintenance Services

•  Sustaining and improving homes which are safe  
and comfortable

•  Continued investment in sustainability improvements

•  Continued investment in health and safety  
compliance and monitoring

Andrew, bpha team member

Our Strategic Risks:

Whitehouse, Milton Keynes
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Investing in existing homes and communities 
to make them great places to live now and  
in the future

Risk
We do not invest sufficiently in homes and communities, 
leading to poor quality homes and communal areas.

Impact
•  Homes are not designed and built to meet safety,  

quality and environmental standards

•  Homes are not maintained to meet safety, quality  
and environmental standards

•  Communal areas (internal and external) are not designed 
and maintained to meet safety, quality and environmental 
standards

•  Customers and communities are impacted by wider societal 
issues including anti-social behaviour; fly tipping; domestic 
abuse and safeguarding issues or by failures by third parties 

Mitigations
•  Seeking grant funding to make homes more  

environmentally sustainable and economical

•  Business plan includes a focus on the poorest  
performing homes 

•  Continued investment in homes to maintain Decent Homes 
Standard 

•  Collection of longer-term stock investment and condition 
data to inform our long term investment plans 

Building new, quality, sustainable, homes  
to help provide more opportunities for people

Risk
We are unable to fill our development pipeline with  
homes of the desired quality at a realistic cost.

Impact
•  We do not have the financial capacity to invest within  

our risk appetite, limiting the number of homes built

• We are uncompetitive in a competitive market

• New entrants disrupt the market

• Changes to legislation reduce opportunities

• Lack of skills to drive land-led development

• Lack of available land drives up cost

• Delays to planning affects financial viability

•  Economic pressures drive down quality of homes for 
customers, requiring remedy and impacting on reputation

•  Homes with ‘green credentials’ cannot be provided  
at an economic cost 

•  Reduced income through rent or sales impacts financial 
viability of programme

Mitigations
•  Review appraisal model to improve competitiveness  

on strategic sites

•  Maintain a professionally skilled and experienced 
development Team

•  Develop and maintain effective relationships with existing 
and potential development partners, landowners, developers, 
contractors and joint venture partners

• Effective financial monitoring of development programme

• Regular quality site inspections

•  A strong relationship with Homes England through 
Continuous Market Engagement to secure necessary  
grant funding to support new developments

Dennis Court, Kempston, Bedford
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Investing in systems and data to give customers 
choice, be more efficient and build successful 
ways of working

Risk
Investment in systems does not achieve planned outcomes. 
Poor quality data leads to a legislative or regulatory breach 
/service failure. 

Impact
•  Investment in systems does not achieve the anticipated 

benefits

•  Data is not managed – it is inconsistent; outdated and 
inaccurate

• Investment in systems results in significant costs overrun

•  Incomplete data, meaning homes are not maintained  
in line with legal requirements leading to more health  
and safety risks for customers 

•  Decisions are made on poor quality data leading to bad 
decisions around investment and services

•  Poorly maintained system security leads to breaches

•  Employee error due to lack of understanding or carelessness 

•  Fraud leading to loss and distress for customers and  
a negative impact across bpha

Mitigations
•  Investment in corporate program office to manage  

systems and change

•  Development of data strategy and data governance process

• Investment in system security and employee training

•  Investment in information technology to automate and 
simplify processes and provide reliable business information

•  Development of ‘Customer Relationship Management’ 
system to provide a single view of the customer

A desired employer, attracting and retaining 
talent in a values led and successful 
organisation

Risk
We do not have sufficient colleagues with the  
correct skills to deliver our strategic objectives.

Impact
•  Lack of financial capacity restricts headcount,  

leading to increased stress and sickness

• Unable to attract colleagues 

• High employee turnover 

• Failure to develop colleagues with required skills

•  Failure to attract a diverse workforce, leading  
to a lack of effective internal challenge

Mitigations 
•  Recruitment of ED&I specialist and ED&I strategy and plan

•  New Ways of Working introduced – more flexible  
and productive

•  Engaged and connected colleagues – ongoing positivity 
demonstrated through Great Place to Work survey

•  Investment in apprenticeships, leadership development  
and wellbeing initiatives

Wasila, bpha team member 
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Co-operative and Community Benefit Society law requires the 
Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year. 
Under those regulations the Board have elected to prepare 
the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting 
Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. 

The financial statements are required by law to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the 
association and of the income and expenditure of the group 
and the association for that period. 

In preparing these financial statements,  
the Board is required to: 

•  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply  
them consistently; 

•  Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable  
and prudent; 

•  State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the 
Statement of Recommended Practice have been followed, 
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 
in the financial statements;  

•  Assess the group’s and the association’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters  
related to going concern; and 

•  Use the going concern basis  
of accounting unless it either intends  
to liquidate the group or the association or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board is responsible for keeping proper books  
of account that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any  
time the financial position of the association and enable  
them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the  
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the 
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting 
Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 
2019. It is responsible for such internal control as it determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due  
to fraud or error, and has general responsibility for taking 
such steps as are reasonably open to it to safeguard the 
assets of the association and to prevent and detect fraud  
and other irregularities. 

The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity 
of the corporate and financial information included on the 
association’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Statement as to Disclosure of Information  
to Auditors
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this 
Board’s Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, 
there is no relevant information of which the association’s 
auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken steps that 
they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves 
aware of any relevant information and to establish that the 
association’s auditors are aware of this information.

Auditors
Following a tender process, a resolution to reappoint  
KPMG LLP as auditors of the association for a term  
of three years from 1 April 2021, with an option to extend  
a further two years, was agreed.

Approval of Report
The Report of the Board, including the Strategic Report  
and Governance Report, was approved by the Board  
on 14 July 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Philippa Spratley
Company Secretary
14 July 2022

Statement of Board’s 
responsibilities in respect  
of the Board’s report and 
the financial statements 
The Board is responsible for preparing the 
Board’s Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations
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Independent auditor’s  
report to BPHA 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of BPHA (“the 
association”) for the year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise 
the Group and Association statement of comprehensive income, 
the Group and Association statement of financial position, the 
Group and Association statement of changes in equity, the Group 
cash flow statement and related notes, including the accounting 
policies in note 2. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

•  give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK accounting 
standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, of the state of 
affairs of the group and the association as at 31 March 2022 and 
of the income and expenditure of the group and the association 
for the year then ended; 

•  comply with the requirements of the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014; and 

•  have been prepared in accordance with the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for  
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019. 

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law.  
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our 
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the group 
and the association in accordance with, UK ethical requirements 
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis 
for our opinion.

Going concern
The association’s Board has prepared the financial statements 
on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the 
group or the association or to cease their operations, and as they 
have concluded that the group’s and the association’s financial 
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that 
there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant 
doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least 
a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the 
going concern period”).

In our evaluation of the Board’s conclusions, we considered 
the inherent risks to the group’s business model and analysed 
how those risks might affect the group’s and the association’s 
financial resources or ability to continue operations over the 
going concern period. 

Our conclusions based on this work:

•  we consider that the Board’s use of the going concern basis  
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements  
is appropriate;

•  we have not identified, and concur with the Board’s assessment 
that there is not, a material uncertainty related to events or 
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant 
doubt on the group’s and the association’s ability to continue  
as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and 
as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent 
with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were 
made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee that the group 
or the association will continue in operation. 

Fraud and breaches of laws and  
regulations – ability to detect
Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations – ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material  
misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud 
risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an 
incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity  
to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included :

•  Enquiring of directors, internal audit as to the Group’s high-level 
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the 
internal audit function, as well as whether they have knowledge 
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

•  Reading Board, audit committee minutes.

•  Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual  
or unexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team 
and remained alert to any indications of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures to 
address the risk of management override of controls and the risk of 
fraudulent revenue recognition from first tranche sales, in particular:

•  the risk that Group management may be in a position to make 
inappropriate accounting entries; and

•  the risk that first tranche sales income is under or overstated 
through recording revenues in the wrong period.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

In determining the audit procedures we took into account the 
results of our evaluation and testing of the operating effectiveness 
of some of the Group -wide fraud risk management controls.

We also performed procedures including: 

•  Identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and 
comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. 
These included those posted to unusual account combinations 
including cash or revenue. 

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement 
related to compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably 
be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements 
from our general commercial and sector experience through 
discussion with the directors and other management (as required 
by auditing standards), and discussed with the directors the policies 
and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. 

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout  
our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance 
throughout the audit. 

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial 
statements varies considerably.

The Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect 
the financial statements including financial reporting legislation 
(including related Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies 
Act legislation), and taxation legislation and we assessed the 
extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of 
our procedures on the related financial statement items. 

Whilst the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations, 
we did not identify any others where the consequences of non-
compliance allow could have a material effect on amounts or 
disclosures in the financial statements’. Auditing standards limit the 
required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these 
laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and inspection of 
regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach 
of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from 
relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud  
or breaches of law or regulation
Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an 
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material 
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have 
properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and 
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely 
the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards 
would identify it. 

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of 
non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect 
material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing  
non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect  
non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information
The association’s Board is responsible for the other information, 
which comprises the Board’s Group Report. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and, 
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work, 
the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on 
that work, we have not identified material misstatements in the 
other information.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 
we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

•  the association has not kept proper books of account; or

•  the association has not maintained a satisfactory system  
of control over its transactions; or

•  the financial statements are not in agreement with the 
association’s books of account; or

•  we have not received all the information and explanations  
we need for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Board’s responsibilities 
As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 60, 
the association’s Board is responsible for: the preparation of 
financial statements which give a true and fair view; such internal 
control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the group and the 
association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless it either intends to 
liquidate the group or the association or to cease operations,  
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.   

Auditor’s responsibilities 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our 
opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s 
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. 

The purpose of our audit work and  
to whom we owe our responsibilities
This report is made solely to the association in accordance with 
section 87 of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies 
Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the association those matters we are required to state 
to it in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 
to anyone other than the association, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Harry Mears 
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants  
15 Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5GL 
21 July 2022
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Note

2022
Group
£’000

2022
Association

£’000

2021
Group
£’000

2021
Association

£’000

Turnover 3 144,317 140,908 131,564 126,727

Cost of sales 3 (25,344) (21,061) (13,685) (9,789)

Operating costs 3 (68,928) (68,875) (66,593) (66,356)

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets 3,10 11,695 11,708 6,917 6,917 

Valuation gain on investment properties 3,13  311  311 1,321 1,321 

                                                           

Operating surplus 3 62,051 62,991 59,524 58,820 

Interest receivable and similar income 7 914 911 548 534 

Interest payable and similar charges 8 (34,616) (34,616) (34,988) (34,988)

Movement in fair value of financial instruments 20 11,666 11,666 12,526 12,526 

Gift aid  - 990  - 1,228 

                                                           

Surplus before tax  40,015 41,942 37,610 38,120 

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 11 599  -  -  - 

                                                           

Surplus for the year 9,23 40,614 41,942 37,610 38,120 

                                                           

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gains/(losses) on pension scheme 21 9,713 9,713 (10,363) (10,363)

                                                           

Other comprehensive income for the year 23 9,713 9,713 (10,363) (10,363)

                                                           

Total comprehensive income for the year 50,327 51,655 27,247 27,757 

Note

2022
Group
£’000

2022
Association

£’000

2021
Group
£’000

2021
Association

£’000

Fixed assets
Housing properties and other fixed assets 12 1,285,053 1,285,165 1,251,004 1,251,173 

Fixed asset investments 13,29 17,080 33,758 16,769 35,282 

HomeBuy loans receivable 26,140 26,140 28,563 28,563 

1,328,273 1,345,063 1,296,336 1,315,018 

Current assets
Properties for sale and work in progress 12 25,075 16,392 37,678 24,422 

Trade and other debtors 14 6,016 6,734 6,199 7,525 

Short term investments 15 1,919 1,919 11,847 11,847 

Cash and cash equivalents 40,825 33,006 65,470 58,743 

73,835 58,054 121,194 102,537 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 (38,970) (38,541) (51,625) (51,532)

Net current assets 34,865 19,513 69,569 51,005 

Total assets less current liabilities 1,363,138 1,364,576 1,365,905 1,366,023 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Other creditors 17 (958,014) (959,339) (962,047) (963,379)

Other provisions 20 (8,601) (8,601) (49,125) (49,125)

Pension liability 21 (27,470) (27,470) (36,007) (36,007)

(994,085) (995,409) (1,047,179) (1,048,511)

Net assets 369,053 369,167 318,726 317,512 

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 22  -  -  -  - 
Revenue reserve 23 369,053 369,167 318,726 317,512 

Total funds 369,053 369,167 318,726 317,512 

bpha group statement of financial position
at 31 March 2022

bpha group statement of comprehensive income  
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Kevin Bolt  
Chief Executive Officer 

Julian Pearce 
Chief Financial Officer

Philippa Spratley  
Company Secretary

Kevin Bolt  
Chief Executive Officer 

Julian Pearce 
Chief Financial Officer

Philippa Spratley  
Company Secretary
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NoteNote

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Surplus for the yearSurplus for the year aa 50,32750,327 51,65551,655 27,247 27,247 27,757 27,757 

Adjustments for:Adjustments for:

Depreciation and impairmentDepreciation and impairment 24,420 24,420 23,41723,417 20,967 20,967 20,967 20,967 

Cost of fixed assets soldCost of fixed assets sold 12,485 12,485 12,485 12,485 9,213 9,213 9,213 9,213 

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assetsProceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets (26,831)(26,831) (26,831)(26,831) (18,497)(18,497) (18,497)(18,497)

1st Tranche shared ownership surplus1st Tranche shared ownership surplus (9,732)(9,732) (9,512)(9,512) (7,679)(7,679) (6,944)(6,944)

Change in value of investment propertyChange in value of investment property (311)(311) (311)(311) (1,321)(1,321) (1,321)(1,321)

Interest receivable and similar incomeInterest receivable and similar income (914)(914) (911)(911) (548)(548) (534)(534)

Interest payable and similar chargesInterest payable and similar charges 32,969 32,969 32,969 32,969 33,505 33,505 33,505 33,505 

Movement in fair value of financial instrumentsMovement in fair value of financial instruments (11,666)(11,666) (11,666)(11,666) (12,526)(12,526) (12,526)(12,526)

Internal development on-costsInternal development on-costs (3,020)(3,020) (3,018)(3,018) (1,762)(1,762) (1,766)(1,766)

Amortisation of government grantAmortisation of government grant (576)(576) (509)(509) (448)(448) (448)(448)

bb 16,82416,824 16,11316,113 20,904 20,904 21,649 21,649 

Decrease / (increase) in trade and other debtorsDecrease / (increase) in trade and other debtors 991 991 995 995 (590)(590) (303)(303)

Increase in trade and other creditorsIncrease in trade and other creditors 3,9903,990 4,3304,330 1,387 1,387 1,050 1,050 

(Decrease) / increase pension liability provision(Decrease) / increase pension liability provision (7,960)(7,960) (7,960)(7,960) 11,232 11,232 11,232 11,232 

(Decrease) / increase(Decrease) / increase cc (2,979)(2,979) (2,635)(2,635) 12,029 12,029 11,979 11,979 

Net cash from operating activities d=a+b+cd=a+b+c 64,172 64,172 65,133 65,133 60,180 60,180 61,385 61,385 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

NoteNote

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of tangible fixed assetsDisposal of tangible fixed assets 26,831 26,831 26,831 26,831 18,497 18,497 18,497 18,497 

Proceeds from sale of 1st Tranche shared ownershipProceeds from sale of 1st Tranche shared ownership 32,183 32,183 28,738 28,738 21,364 21,364 16,733 16,733 

Investment in joint arrangementsInvestment in joint arrangements - - - - 2,428 2,428 - - 

Interest receivedInterest received 456 456 453 453 548 548 534 534 

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets (non property)Acquisition of tangible fixed assets (non property) (1,089)(1,089) (1,089)(1,089) (593)(593) (593)(593)

Capitalised repairs of housing propertiesCapitalised repairs of housing properties (21,152)(21,152) (21,352)(21,352) (13,570)(13,570) (13,570)(13,570)

Purchase and development of housing propertiesPurchase and development of housing properties (52,411)(52,411) (50,806)(50,806) (45,556)(45,556) (43,119)(43,119)

Proceeds from the receipt of government grantsProceeds from the receipt of government grants 1,587 1,587 1,587 1,587 144 144 144 144 

Net cash from investing activities ee (13,595)(13,595) (15,638)(15,638) (16,738)(16,738) (21,374)(21,374)

            

Cash flows from financing activitiesCash flows from financing activities

Net movement on borrowingsNet movement on borrowings (12,595)(12,595) (13,270)(13,270) 13,986 13,986 13,334 13,334 

Interest paidInterest paid (37,680)(37,680) (37,015)(37,015) (39,320)(39,320) (38,671)(38,671)

Swap breakage costsSwap breakage costs (34,297)(34,297) (34,297)(34,297) - - - - 

Mark To Market Collateral MovementMark To Market Collateral Movement 8,980 8,980 8,980 8,980 8,210 8,210 8,210 8,210 

Net cash withdrawal from short term deposits and investments 947 947 947 947 (959)(959) (959)(959)

Defined benefit contributions (577) (577) (556) (556)

Net cash from financing activities ff (75,222)(75,222) (75,232)(75,232) (18,639)(18,639) (18,642)(18,642)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalentsNet (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents g=d+e+fg=d+e+f (24,645)(24,645) (25,737)(25,737) 24,803 24,803 21,369 21,369 

Cash and cash equivalents b/fCash and cash equivalents b/f 65,470 65,470 58,743 58,743 40,667 40,667 37,374 37,374 

Cash and cash equivalents c/f 2727 40,825 40,825 33,006 33,006 65,470 65,470 58,743 58,743 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities (continued)

Group cash flow statement
for year ended 31 March 2022

Group cash flow statement
for year ended 31 March 2022
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Group Note

Called up  
share capital

£’000

Revenue  
reserve

£’000

Total  
equity
£’000

Balance at 31 March 2020  - 291,479 291,479 

Total comprehensive income for the 2020/21 year
Surplus for the year  - 37,610 37,610 

Actuarial gains on pension scheme  - (10,363) (10,363)

Balance at 31 March 2021  - 318,726 318,726 

  

Total comprehensive income for the 2021/22 year
Surplus for the year  - 40,614 40,614

Actuarial gains on pension scheme  - 9,713 9,713

Balance at 31 March 2022  - 369,053 369,053

  

Association Note

Called up  
share capital

£’000

Revenue  
reserve

£’000

Total  
equity
£’000

Balance at 31 March 2020  - 289,755 289,755 

Total comprehensive income for the 2020/21 year
Surplus for the year  - 38,120 38,120 

Actuarial gains on pension scheme  - (10,363) (10,363)

Balance at 31 March 2021  - 317,512 317,512 

Total comprehensive income for the 2021/22 year
Surplus for the year  - 41,942 41,942

Actuarial gains on pension scheme  - 9,713 9,713

Balance at 31 March 2022  - 369,167 369,167

1. Legal Status
bpha Limited (the association) is registered under the 
Cooperative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 
Register (No:26751R) and is registered with the Regulator  
of Social Housing (RSH) (No:LH 3887) as a social landlord.  
It is a public benefit entity.

2. Principal Accounting Policies 
Basis of Consolidation
bpha is the ultimate parent undertaking for the group and 
has prepared consolidated financial statements as there are 
two subsidiaries, bpha Finance plc and Bushmead Homes 
Limited, that are material components of the group. The 
group financial statements consolidate the accounts of bpha 
and all its subsidiaries at 31 March 2022.

Subsidiary financial statements are prepared for the same 
reporting periods as bpha, using consistent accounting 
policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, including 
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions, are 
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared under the historical 
cost convention and, in accordance with Financial Reporting 
Standard 102 (FRS 102) which is the applicable financial 
reporting standard in the UK and Republic of Ireland and 
the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting by 
Registered Social Housing Providers Update 2018 (SORP 
2018) and comply with the Accounting Direction for Private 
Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019.

As required in the updates to the FRS, SORP and Accounting 
Direction, operating surplus includes any profit or loss on the 
sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property 
and intangible assets. Any future profit or loss on the 
disposal of a discontinued operation would be excluded from 
operating surplus and explanations of the discontinuation 
would be made in the notes to the accounts.

Going Concern
The Board has assessed and approved the bpha group  
30-year Business Plan. This evidences the immediate 
financial viability of the group and the resilience of its long-
term plans to various stress scenarios. The stress scenarios 
tested include the severe but plausible downturn scenario of 
an economic recession, including higher cost inflation, higher 
interest rates, a freeze in rent increases, high bad debts, and 
a housing market slow down with a resultant reduction  
in open market property values.

bpha group has available cash and borrowing facilities which 
are sufficient to meet its ongoing obligations for at least 12 
months. Regarding the longer-term plan and the ability to 
meet loan agreement obligations, all covenants and liquidity 
requirements are met throughout the next 10-year plan 
period. Consequently, the Board does not see a requirement 
to deviate from business as usual but will continue to monitor 
performance closely.

The Board therefore has a reasonable expectation that bpha 
group has adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for at least 12 months from the date of signing.  
For this reason, the Board continues to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the group’s financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements
for year ended 31 March 2022

bpha group statement of changes in equity
for year ended 31 March 2022
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Judgements in applying accounting policies  
and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the financial statements management have 
made judgements and estimates in relation to the treatment 
of certain items, which include:

Capitalisation of property development and other costs: 
distinguishing the point at which a potential property 
development project is more likely than not to go ahead. 
This forms the basis for capitalisation of associated 
development and other costs.

Allocation of costs for mixed tenure developments: costs 
incurred in the development of schemes are usually directly 
attributable to specific tenures in line with contractual 
agreements. In cases where total scheme costs must be 
allocated between tenures, this is done on a floor area basis.

Financial instruments: determining the categorisation  
of financial instruments as basic or other and, if hedge 
effective, whether to adopt hedge accounting. 

Useful lives of depreciable assets: fixed assets are 
depreciated over their useful lives taking into account 
estimated residual values. Further details are set out in the 
accounting policy notes below.

Evaluation of pension liability: the pension plan liabilities are 
based upon assumptions.

Impairment: details of judgements in relation to impairment 
are set out in the accounting policy note below. In certain areas, 
in exercising judgement or making estimates, management 
has taken account of the advice of independent qualified 
parties who provide technical expertise and/or valuations. If 
we feel it appropriate to apply a different valuation to that of 
the independent advisors, then attention will be drawn to this 
within the financial statements. Key areas where management 
take account of independent third-party advice in determining 
valuations include the following:

• Investment properties – refer to note 13 
• Financial instruments – refer to note 20 
• Pension costs and fund valuation – refer to note 21

Impairment
The carrying amounts of bpha’s assets, other than investment 
property, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
Additionally, because bpha’s assets are held for their service 
potential, the depreciated replacement cost is also considered 
as part of the impairment review. For impairment testing, 
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together 
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows 
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or groups of assets  
(the “cash-generating unit” or “CGU”).

The calculation of the recoverable amount for impairment 
testing, including the depreciated replacement cost of 
housing properties held for social benefit, is an accounting 
estimate that may have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount  
of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement  
of Comprehensive Income.

Joint arrangements
Joint arrangements are those contractual undertakings in 
which the group exercises joint control over the operating 
and financial policies of the arrangement. Where the joint 
arrangement is carried out through a legal entity, it is 
treated as a jointly controlled entity. Joint arrangements 
are held as fixed asset investments, shown at cost, less any 
amounts written-off.

Where the group has entered a contractual arrangement that 
is classed as a jointly controlled entity, the jointly controlled 
entity is accounted for using the equity method, which reflects 
the group’s share of the profit or loss, other comprehensive 
income and equity of the jointly controlled entity.

Turnover
Turnover comprises rental and service charge income 
receivable (net of void losses), first tranche sales of shared 
ownership properties, sales of properties built for sale, 
supporting people income, fees, and other services included 
at the invoiced value (excluding VAT where applicable)  
of goods and services supplied in the year, amortisation  
of deferred capital grants, and other revenue grants 
receivable. It also includes, in accordance with FRS 102, 
amortisation of Social Housing Grant (SHG) by applying the 
accrual model such that deferred grant income is released 
as income over the life of the asset. Revenue grants are 
recognised when the conditions for receipt of agreed grant 
funding have been met.
Rental income is recognised from the point when properties 
under development reach practical completion or otherwise 
become available for letting. Income from property sales is 
recognised at the point of legal completion of the sale.

Cost of sales
Included within operating costs are costs relating to 
newly developed properties sold in the year. These costs 
include expenditure incurred during development of those 
properties, including capitalised interest, direct overheads, 
marketing, and other incidental costs incurred during the 
sale of those properties.

Improvements to existing properties
The amount of expenditure incurred which relates to an 
improvement, which is defined as delivering an increase 
in the net rental stream or the life of a component, is 
capitalised. Expenditure incurred on other major repairs, 
cyclical and day-to-day repairs to housing properties  
is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income  
in the period in which it is incurred.

Leased assets
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefits of lease 
incentives are recognised as a reduction to the expense 
recognised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Value Added Tax
bpha charges Value Added Tax (VAT) on some of its 
income and can therefore recover part of the VAT it incurs 
on expenditure. The Statement of Comprehensive Income 
includes VAT to the extent that this is suffered by bpha  
and not recoverable from HMRC.

Interest payable 
Interest payable is capitalised on borrowings to finance 
developments to the extent that it accrues in respect of the 
period of development. Capitalised interest is calculated on 
borrowings of bpha to the extent that they can be deemed 
to be financing the development programme. Other interest 
payable is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income in the year.

Corporation Tax 
bpha has charitable status and is not subject to Corporation 
Tax on surpluses arising because of, or earned in furtherance 
of, its charitable objectives. 

bpha is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 
1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the 
definition of a charitable company for UK Corporation Tax 
purposes. Accordingly, bpha is potentially exempt from 
taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within 
categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax 
Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains 
Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied 
exclusively to charitable purposes.

bpha has several subsidiary companies, some of which 
do not have charitable status, and which therefore are 
subject to Corporation Tax. For these entities, the charge 
for Corporation Tax is based on the result for the period 
including any deferred taxation. Deferred taxation is provided 
on differences between the treatment of certain items for 
taxation and accounting purposes unless it is probable that 
the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Housing properties and other tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost 
includes the cost of acquiring land and buildings, directly 
attributable development costs, interest at the average cost 
of borrowing for the development period, and expenditure 
incurred in respect of improvements. Improvements are works 
which result in an increase in the net rental income, such as a 
reduction in future maintenance costs, or result in a significant 
extension of the useful economic life of the property in the 
business. Only the direct overhead costs associated with new 
developments or improvements are capitalised.
Housing properties are principally properties available for 
rent and properties subject to shared ownership leases. 
Properties under construction are stated at cost within fixed 
assets and are transferred into housing properties when 
completed. The costs of shared ownership properties under 
construction are split proportionately between current and 
fixed assets; the proportion relating to expected first tranche 
sales is classed as a current asset and the remaining element 
is classed as a fixed asset which is transferred into housing 
properties when completed.

Land donated by local authorities and others is added to 
cost at the market value of the land at the time of donation.
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Depreciation
bpha separately identifies the major components which 
comprise its housing properties and charges depreciation 
to write down the cost of each component to its estimated 
residual value on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful 
life. The group believes that the lives used are reasonable 
based on their experience. The most material assumption 
is the lives of housing property components: these were 
determined in 2010 when component accounting was first 
adopted and are reviewed periodically. Where a component 
is replaced, any residual carrying value is fully written off in 
the year of replacement, and the cost of the replacement 
component is capitalised.

Care home properties are depreciated over the length  
of the related lease agreements.

Major components are treated as separable assets and 
depreciated over their expected useful economic lives as 
detailed below:

Assets      Years
Structure     100
Kitchens     20
Bathrooms     30
Heating Systems – Boilers   12
Heating Systems – Radiators   30
Roofs – Pitched    60
Roofs – Flat    20
Windows and Doors    30
Electrics      30
Lift       60
Freehold land is not depreciated.

Furniture and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line 
basis over the expected economic useful lives of the assets, 
which range between two and ten years. Long leasehold 
properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Short leasehold properties are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed if there is an indication of a significant change since 
the last annual reporting date in the pattern by which the group 
expects to consume an asset’s future economic benefits.

Investment properties
Investment properties consist of commercial properties 
and other properties not held for social benefit or for use 
in the business. Investment properties are measured at 
cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value at 
the year-end date, with changes in fair value recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value is 
determined annually by appropriately qualified external 
valuers and is derived from current market rents and 
investment property yields for comparable properties, 
adjusted if necessary for any difference in the nature, 
location, or condition of the specific asset. No depreciation  
is provided on investment properties.

Concessionary loans
A concessionary loan is a loan made or received between  
a public benefit entity or an entity within a public benefit 
entity group and another party:

(a) at below the prevailing market rate of interest;

(b) that is not repayable on demand; and

(c)  is for the purposes of furthering the objectives of the 
public benefit entity or public benefit entity parent.

These loans are measured at the amount advanced 
at the inception of the loan less amounts received and 
any provisions for impairment. Any associated grant is 
recognised as deferred income until the loan is redeemed.

bpha has arrangements that are concessionary loans:

HomeBuy and other similar schemes – Under a HomeBuy 
scheme, bpha received a HomeBuy grant representing a 
percentage of the open market purchase price of a property 
in order to advance interest free or low interest loans to a 
homebuyer. The loans advanced by bpha meet the definition 
of concessionary loans and are shown as fixed assets 
investments on the Statement of Financial Position. The 
HomeBuy grant provided by the Government to fund all or 
part of a HomeBuy loan has been classified as a deferred 
income creditor, due in more than one year.

If the property is sold, bpha recovers the equivalent loaned 
percentage value of the property at the time of the sale. The 
grant is reclassified to Recycled Capital Grant Fund when the 
loans are redeemed up to the amount of the original grant 
and to the extent the proceeds permit. bpha can retain any 
surplus proceeds less sale costs attributable to the equivalent 
loaned percentage share of the value of the property. If there 
is a fall in the value of the property, the shortfall of proceeds 
is offset against the grant creditor.

Rent and service charge agreements – bpha has made 
arrangement with individuals and households for arrears 
payments of rent and service charges. These arrangements 
are effectively loans granted at nil interest rate.

Properties for sale
Properties held for sale including shared ownership properties 
and properties under construction are stated at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct 
labour, and direct development overheads. Net realisable 
value is based on estimated sales price after allowing for all 
further costs of completion and disposal.

Basic financial instruments
Tenant arrears, trade and other debtors – Recognised 
initially at transaction price. Tenants and other debtors that 
are collected through the administration of payment plans 
or over an agreed finite period are discounted to determine 
their net present value with a subsequent impairment 
evaluation undertaken and the impact recorded in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Trade and other creditors – Recognised initially at transaction 
price. If the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for 
example if payment is deferred beyond normal business terms, 
then it is measured at the present value of future payments 
discounted at a market rate for a similar debt instrument.

Interest-bearing borrowings classified as basic financial 
instruments – Recognised initially at fair value less 
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, 
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment 
losses. Where the group has incurred a premium or discount 
on its bond issues, the balance is shown net against the 
associated bond liability and is charged over the term of the 
debt using the effective interest rate method.

Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities 
and associates – Recognised at transaction price including 
attributable transaction costs.

Cash and cash equivalents – Comprise cash balances and 
call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 
and form an integral part of the group’s cash management 
are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for 
the purpose only of the cash flow statement.

Current asset investments
Current asset investments are stated at market value and 
include mark to market collateral deposits and investments

Liquid resources
Liquid resources are readily disposable current asset 
investments. They include some money market deposits  
held for more than 24 hours that can only be withdrawn, 
without penalty, on maturity or by giving notice of more  
than one working day.

Social housing and other grant
Social housing grants received in relation to assets that are 
presented at deemed cost at the date of transition to FRS 
102 have been accounted for using the performance model 
as required by SORP. In applying this model, such grant has 
been presented as if it were originally recognised as income 
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year 
it was receivable and is therefore included within brought 
forward reserves.
Social housing grants received since the transition date in 
relation to newly acquired or existing housing properties 
is accounted for using the accrual model set out in FRS 
102 and SORP. Grant is carried as deferred income in the 
Statement of Financial Position and released as income 
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income account on  
a systematic basis over the useful economic lives of the 
assets for which it was received. In accordance with SORP, 
the useful economic life of the housing property structure 
has been selected (see table of useful economic lives).
Where a social housing grant funded property is sold, the 
grant becomes recyclable and is transferred to the Recycled 
Capital Grant Fund (RCGF) until it is reinvested in a replacement 
property or repaid. If there is no requirement to recycle or 
repay the grant on disposal of the assets, any unamortised 
grant remaining within creditors is released and recognised  
as income within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Other grants include grants from local authorities and other 
organisations. Grants relating to revenue are recognised as 
income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the 
same period as the expenditure to which they relate once 
performance related conditions have been met.

Grants due from government organisations or received  
in advance are included as current assets or liabilities.

Deferred income
Deferred income comprises both premiums on leases which 
are released over the life of the lease and other income 
received, such as unamortised grant, which is carried forward 
over the lives of the assets concerned.

Provisions
A provision is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 
when bpha has a present legal or constructive obligation 
because of a past event, that can be reliably measured, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best 
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the 
reporting date.
bpha’s receivables provision policy is based on review of the 
age profile of its debt, historical collection rates and the class 
of debt. Bad and doubtful debts are provided on all debtors’ 
arrears and are dependent on the status of the tenancy or 
debtor and on the age of the debt.

Current tenant debtors are provided for at a level which  
is based on reviews of individual balances, while former tenants 
are provided for in full. Other debtors are reviewed on  
a case-by-case basis.
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Other financial instruments and hedging
bpha uses interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to 
future increases in interest rates on floating rate loans. 
Amounts payable and receivable in respect of these 
agreements are recognised as adjustments to interest 
payable over the period of the agreement. These interest 
rate swaps are classified either as basic or other financial 
instruments in accordance with the requirements of FRS 102.
Other financial instruments are initially recognised at fair 
value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered 
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value at each 
reporting date. The group considers whether each individual 
derivative contract is hedge effective. If it is hedge effective, 
the group considers whether to hedge account for the 
derivative contract according to business circumstances and 
then applies this consistently in successive years over the life 
of the contract. To the extent that a derivative is not hedge 
effective, or the group chooses not to hedge account, the 
gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is 
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The fair value of derivatives is disclosed in Note 20.

Pension costs
bpha operates a defined benefit pension scheme which 
closed to new members from 31 March 2010.
The assets of the closed scheme are invested and managed 
independently to the finances of the group. These pension 
scheme assets are measured using market values and 
pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected 
unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a 
high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency 
to the liability. In accordance with FRS 102 section 28, the 
pension scheme surplus (to the extent that it is recoverable) 
or deficit is recognised in full. The movement in the scheme 
surplus/deficit is split between operating charges, finance 
items and, in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
actuarial gains and losses. 

Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice 
of independent qualified actuaries. Costs include the regular 
cost of providing benefits which, it is intended, should remain 
a substantially level percentage of the current and expected 
future earnings of the colleagues covered. Variations from 
the regular pension costs are spread evenly through the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the average 
remaining service lives of the current colleagues.

There are several critical underlying assumptions when 
measuring the defined benefit scheme, including standard 
rates of inflation, mortality, discount rates and anticipation 
of future salaries. Variation in these assumptions may 
significantly impact the defined benefit obligation and annual 
expense. These assumptions and calculations are prepared 
by an independent actuary.

These actuarial assumptions may have a significant risk  
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts  
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.  
Refer to Note 21 for the valuation of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme deficit funding contributions and valuations 
of defined benefit assets/liabilities.

Since 1 April 2010 a defined contribution scheme has been 
available to colleagues. The charge to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income which represents bpha’s contribution 
to the scheme for the accounting period is detailed in the 
notes to the financial statements.

Other employee benefits 
The policy of bpha is to recognise the cost of all employee 
benefits to which colleagues have become entitled because  
of service rendered during the reporting year.

Contingent liabilities 
A contingent liability is either a possible but uncertain 
obligation as a result of a past event, or present obligation 
that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

•  It is not probable that an outflow of economic resources  
will be required; or

•  The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with 
sufficient reliability.

bpha’s policy is not to provide for contingent liabilities.  
Full disclosure of any contingent liabilities is made within  
the financial statements.

Capital commitments 
These are predominantly commitments towards 
developments which have been contracted and which  
have started on site, or which have been approved by  
bpha’s Board.

Segmental reporting 
For segmental reporting, the chief operating decision maker 
(CODM) is the Board. In line with the segments reported to 
the CODM, the presentation of these financial statements 
and accompanied notes are in accordance with Accounting 
Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 
2019 and is considered appropriate. Information about income, 
expenditure, and assets attributable to material operating 
segments are presented based on the nature and function  
of housing assets held by the group. This is appropriate 
based on the similarity of the services provided, the nature 
of the risks associated, the type and class of customer and 
the nature of the regulatory environment in which the group 
operates. Refer to Note 3 for further disclosed information.

UnitsUnits

20222022
TurnoverTurnover

£’000£’000

Cost  Cost  
of Salesof Sales

£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
costscosts
£’000£’000

Surplus on Surplus on 
disposalsdisposals

£’000£’000

Valuation Valuation 
gain on gain on 

investmentinvestment
£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
surplussurplus

£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
surplus  surplus  

%%

Total social housing lettings  18,584  18,584 103,604 103,604 - - (60,467)(60,467) - - - - 43,13743,137 41.6%41.6%

Other social housing activities
Management feesManagement fees 278 - - - - - - - - 278 278 

First tranche shared ownership salesFirst tranche shared ownership sales 28,738 (19,226)(19,226) (3,530)(3,530) - - - - 5,982 5,982 

Other (including Homebuy and Help to Buy Agents)Other (including Homebuy and Help to Buy Agents) 4,228 4,228 - - (3,215)(3,215) - - - - 1,013 1,013 

Total other social housing activities 33,244 (19,226)(19,226) (6,745)(6,745) - - - - 7,273 7,273 

Total social housing activities 136,848 136,848 (19,226)(19,226) (67,212)(67,212) - - - - 50,41050,410

Activities other than social housing activities
Non social housing activitiesNon social housing activities  1,034  1,034 4,025 4,025 - - (1,590)(1,590) - - - - 2,435 2,435 

Loss on private sales 3,444 (6,118) (126) (2,800)

Surplus on disposal of fixed assetsSurplus on disposal of fixed assets 26,831 - - (2,653)(2,653) (12,483)(12,483) - - 11,695 11,695 

Fair value adjustments on investment properties - - - - - - - - 311 311 311 311 

Total activities other than social  
housing activities 34,300 (6,118)(6,118) (4,369)(4,369) (12,483)(12,483) 311 311 11,64111,641

Total social and non social activities  19,618  19,618 171,148 (25,344)(25,344) (71,581)(71,581) (12,483)(12,483) 311 311 62,05162,051

Capital receipts from disposal of fixed assets (26,831)(26,831) - - 2,653 2,653 24,178 24,178 - - - - 

Adjusted social and non social activities 144,317 144,317 (25,344)(25,344) (68,928)(68,928) 11,695 11,695 311 311 62,05162,051 43.0%43.0%

3:  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus – Group  3:  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus – Group  
Year ended 31 March 2022Year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Our business performance, as presented in our Operating and Financial Review, makes reference to our Development and Sales business 
which comprises asset and first tranche sales. The capital receipts for asset sales are included as revenue for this business in line with our 
treatment for first tranche shared ownership sales. For clarity, therefore, this treatment is reflected in the table above by including the capital 
receipts in the turnover column under the heading of “Surplus on disposal of fixed assets”. Capital receipts are then removed at the bottom 
of the table, under the heading of “Capital receipts from disposal of fixed assets” to reconcile to our turnover as presented in the statement 
of comprehensive income.        
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3:  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus – Group  3:  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus – Group  
Year ended 31 March 2021Year ended 31 March 2021

UnitsUnits

20222022
TurnoverTurnover

£’000£’000

Cost  Cost  
of Salesof Sales

£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
costscosts
£’000£’000

Surplus on Surplus on 
disposalsdisposals

£’000£’000

Valuation Valuation 
gain on gain on 

investmentinvestment
£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
surplussurplus

£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
surplus surplus 

%%

Total social housing lettings  18,584  18,584 103,604 103,604 - - (60,540)(60,540) - - - - 43,06443,064 41.6%41.6%

Other social housing activities
Management feesManagement fees 278 278 - - - - - - - - 278 278 

First tranche shared ownership salesFirst tranche shared ownership sales 28,738 28,738 (19,226)(19,226) (3,530)(3,530) - - - - 5,982 5,982 

Other (including Homebuy and Help to Buy Agents)Other (including Homebuy and Help to Buy Agents) 4,263 4,263 - - (3,215)(3,215) - - - - 1,048 1,048 

Total other social housing activities 33,279 33,279 (19,226)(19,226) (6,745)(6,745) - - - - 7,308 7,308 

Total social housing activities 136,883 136,883 (19,226)(19,226) (67,285)(67,285) - - - - 50,372 50,372 

Activities other than social housing activities
Non social housing activitiesNon social housing activities  1,034  1,034 4,025 4,025 - - (1,590)(1,590) - - - - 2,435 2,435 

Impairment of investment in subsidiary (1,835) -- -- -- (1,835)

Surplus on disposal of fixed assetsSurplus on disposal of fixed assets 26,83126,831 - - (2,653)(2,653) (12,470)(12,470) - - 11,708 11,708 

Fair value adjustments on investment properties - - - - - - - - 311 311 311 311 

Total activities other than social  
housing activities 30,856 30,856 (1,835) (1,835) (4,243)(4,243) (12,470)(12,470) 311 311 12,619 12,619 

Total housing activities  19,618  19,618 167,739 167,739 (21,061)(21,061) (71,528)(71,528) (12,470)(12,470) 311 311 62,99162,991

Capital receipts from disposal of fixed assets (26,831)(26,831) - - 2,653 2,653 24,178 24,178 - - - - 

Adjusted social and non social activities 140,908 140,908 (21,061)(21,061) (68,875)(68,875) 11,708 11,708 311 311 62,99162,991 44.7%44.7%

3:  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus – Association 3:  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus – Association 
Year ended 31 March 2022Year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

UnitsUnits

20212021
TurnoverTurnover

£’000£’000

Cost  Cost  
of Salesof Sales

£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
costscosts
£’000£’000

Surplus on Surplus on 
disposalsdisposals

£’000£’000

Valuation Valuation 
gain on gain on 

investmentinvestment
£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
surplussurplus

£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
surplus  surplus  

%%

Total social housing lettings 18,430 18,430 100,016 100,016 - - (57,746)(57,746) - - - - 42,270 42,270 42.3%42.3%

Other social housing activities
Management feesManagement fees 274 - - - - - - - - 274 274 

First tranche shared ownership salesFirst tranche shared ownership sales 16,733 (9,789)(9,789) (3,854)(3,854) - - - - 3,090 3,090 

Other (including Homebuy and Help to Buy Agents)Other (including Homebuy and Help to Buy Agents) 5,677 5,677 - - (3,132)(3,132) - - - - 2,546 2,546 

Total other social housing activities 22,685 (9,789)(9,789) (6,986)(6,986) - - - - 5,910 5,910 

Total social housing activities 122,701 122,701 (9,789)(9,789) (64,731)(64,731) - - - - 48,180 48,180 

Activities other than social housing activities
Non social housing activitiesNon social housing activities 1,034 1,034 4,233 4,233 - - (1,590)(1,590) - - - - 2,643 2,643 

Surplus on private sales 4,631 (3,896) (272) 463

Surplus on disposal of fixed assetsSurplus on disposal of fixed assets 18,497 - - (2,374)(2,374) (9,206)(9,206) - - 6,917 6,917 

Fair value adjustments on investment properties - - - - - - - - 1,321 1,321 1,321 1,321 

Total activities other than social  
housing activities 27,361 (3,896) (3,896) (4,236)(4,236) (9,206)(9,206) 1,321 1,321 11,345 11,345 

Total social and non social activities 19,464 19,464 150,061 (13,685)(13,685) (68,967)(68,967) (9,206)(9,206) 1,321 1,321 59,524 59,524 

Capital receipts from disposal of fixed assets (18,497)(18,497) - - 2,374 2,374 16,123 16,123 - - - - 

Adjusted social and non social activities 131,564 131,564 (13,685)(13,685) (66,593)(66,593) 6,917 6,917 1,321 1,321 59,524 59,524 45.2%45.2%
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3:  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus – Association 3:  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus – Association 
Year ended 31 March 2021Year ended 31 March 2021

General General 
HousingHousing

Low cost Low cost 
home home 

ownershipownership
Supported Supported 

HousingHousing
Residential Residential 

Care HomesCare Homes OthersOthers 20222022 20212021

Units  12,097  12,097  2,960  2,960  1,297  1,297  862  862  1,368  1,368  18,584  18,584  18,430  18,430 

£'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000

Income from social housing lettings
Rent receivable net of identifiable service chargesRent receivable net of identifiable service charges 71,033 71,033 10,740 10,740 6,563 6,563 5,247 5,247 723 723 94,306 94,306 90,891 90,891 

Charges for support servicesCharges for support services - - - 205 205 - - - - 205 205 166 166 

Service Charge IncomeService Charge Income 3,871 1,205 1,205 2,742 2,742 87 87 736 736 8,641 8,641 8,571 8,571 

Net rents receivable 74,904 74,904 11,945 11,945 9,510 9,510 5,334 5,334 1,459 1,459 103,152103,152 99,628 99,628 

Revenue grants from local authorities  
and other agencies 452 452 - - - - - - - - 452 452 388 388 

Total income from social housing lettings 75,35675,356 11,945 11,945 9,510 9,510 5,334 5,334 1,459 1,459 103,604 103,604 100,016 100,016 

Expenditure on letting activities
Management costManagement cost (11,686)(11,686) (2,859)(2,859) (1,253)(1,253) - - - - (15,798)(15,798) (16,520)(16,520)

Service charge cost (6,667)(6,667) (1,631)(1,631) (715)(715) - - (736)(736) (9,749)(9,749) (8,204)(8,204)

Routine Maintenance (8,951)(8,951) - - (960)(960) - - - - (9,911)(9,911) (8,553)(8,553)

Planned Maintenance (4,403)(4,403) - - (472)(472) - - - - (4,875)(4,875) (4,621)(4,621)

Rent losses from bad debts (485)(485) (118)(118) (52)(52) - - - - (655)(655) (925)(925)

Depreciation (16,529)(16,529) - - (1,772)(1,772) (1,178)(1,178) - - (19,479)(19,479) (18,923)(18,923)

Total expenditure on social housing lettings (48,721)(48,721) (4,608)(4,608) (5,224)(5,224) (1,178)(1,178) (736)(736) (60,467)(60,467) (57,746)(57,746)

Operating surplus on social housing lettings 26,63526,635 7,3377,337 4,2864,286 4,156 4,156 723723 43,13743,137 42,270 42,270 

Void losses (406)(406) (81)(81) (349) (349) - - (9)(9) (845)(845) (832)(832)

3:  Income and Expenditure from Social Housing Lettings – Group3:  Income and Expenditure from Social Housing Lettings – Group

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

UnitsUnits

20212021
TurnoverTurnover

£’000£’000

Cost  Cost  
of Salesof Sales

£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
costscosts
£’000£’000

Surplus on Surplus on 
disposalsdisposals

£’000£’000

Valuation Valuation 
gain on gain on 

investmentinvestment
£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
surplussurplus

£’000£’000

Operating Operating 
surplus surplus 

%%

Total social housing lettings  18,430  18,430 100,016 100,016 - - (57,509)(57,509) - - - - 42,507 42,507 42.5%42.5%

Other social housing activities
Management feesManagement fees 274 274 - - - - - - - - 274 274 

First tranche shared ownership salesFirst tranche shared ownership sales 16,733 16,733 (9,789)(9,789) (4,126)(4,126) - - - - 2,818 2,818 

Other (including Homebuy and Help to Buy Agents)Other (including Homebuy and Help to Buy Agents) 5,713 5,713 - - (3,131)(3,131) - - - - 2,582 2,582 

Total other social housing activities 22,720 22,720 (9,789)(9,789) (7,257)(7,257) - - - - 5,674 5,674 

Total social housing activities 122,736 122,736 (9,789)(9,789) (64,766)(64,766) - - - - 48,181 48,181 

Activities other than social housing activities
Non social housing activitiesNon social housing activities  1,034  1,034 3,991 3,991 - - (1,590)(1,590) - - - - 2,401 2,401 

Profit on disposal of fixed assetsProfit on disposal of fixed assets 18,497 18,497 - - (2,374)(2,374) (9,206)(9,206) - - 6,917 6,917 

Fair value adjustments on investment properties - - - - - - - - 1,321 1,321 1,321 1,321 

Total activities other than social  
housing activities 22,488 22,488 - - (3,964)(3,964) (9,206)(9,206) 1,321 1,321 10,639 10,639 

Total housing activities  19,464  19,464 145,224 145,224 (9,789)(9,789) (68,730)(68,730) (9,206)(9,206) 1,321 1,321 58,820 58,820 

Capital receipts from disposal of fixed assets (18,497)(18,497) - - 2,374 2,374 16,123 16,123 - - - - 

Adjusted social and non social activities 126,727 126,727 (9,789)(9,789) (66,356)(66,356) 6,917 6,917 1,321 1,321 58,820 58,820 46.4%46.4%
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Analysis of movement 2021 to 2022Analysis of movement 2021 to 2022 20222022 20212021
Category Category 

changechange AdditionsAdditions DisposalDisposal
Total Total 

movementmovement

Owned – General 8,901 8,901 8,8838,883 2 2 18 18 (2)(2) 18 18 

Owned – Affordable 2,473 2,473 2,317 4 4 152 152 - - 156 156 

Near market rentsNear market rents 405 405 410 (4)(4) - - (1)(1) (5)(5)

Rent to HomeBuy 318 318 350 (32)(32) - - - - (32)(32)

General housing 12,097 12,097 11,960 (30)(30) 170 170 (3)(3) 137 137 

Shared ownershipShared ownership 2,769 2,769 2,695 32 32 136 136 (94)(94) 74 74 

Key worker – Shared ownership 191 191 193 - - - - (2)(2) (2)(2)

Low cost home ownership 2,960 2,960 2,888 32 32 136 136 (96)(96) 72 72 

Owned – SupportedOwned – Supported 140 140 139 139 - - 1 1 - - 1 1 

Owned – Supported – Managed by othersOwned – Supported – Managed by others 147 147 147 - - - - - - - - 

Owned – Housing for older peopleOwned – Housing for older people 1,010 1,010 925 85 85 - - - - 85 85 

Owned – Housing for older people – Managed by others - - 87 (87)(87) - - - - (87)(87)

Supported housing 1,297 1,297 1,298 (2)(2) 1 1 - - (1)(1)

Owned – Elderly residential care homes 862 862 902 902 - - - - (40)(40) (40)(40)

Residential care homes 862 862 902 - - - - (40)(40) (40)(40)

Owned – Students/Nurses 498 498 498 498 - - - - - - - - 

Owned – Elderly nursing care homes 496 496 496 - - - - - - - - 

Owned – Managed by others 2 2 2 - - - - - - - - 

Commercial 38 38 38 - - - - - - - - 

Non-social 1,034 1,034 1,034 - - - - - - - - 

Total owned 18,250 18,250 18,082 18,082 - - 307 307 (139)(139) 168 168 

Open Market HomeBuy 374 374 395 395 - - - - (21)(21) (21)(21)

MyChoice HomeBuy/Shared equity 249 249 279 - - - - (30)(30) (30)(30)

Leaseholders 668 668 643 - - 28 28 (3)(3) 25 25 

Leaseholders – Reversionary interest 4 4 4 - - - - - - - - 

Managed for others 73 73 61 - - 12 12 - - 12 12 

Others 1,368 1,368 1,382 - - 40 40 (54)(54) (14)(14)

Total owned and in management 19,618 19,618 19,464 19,464 - - 347 347 (193)(193) 154 154 

General General 
HousingHousing

Low cost Low cost 
home home 

ownershipownership
Supported Supported 

HousingHousing
Residential Residential 

Care HomesCare Homes OthersOthers 20222022 20212021

Units  12,097  12,097  2,960  2,960  1,297  1,297  862  862  1,368  1,368  18,584  18,584 18,43018,430

£'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000£'000 £'000

Income from social housing lettings
Rent receivable net of identifiable service chargesRent receivable net of identifiable service charges 71,033 71,033 10,740 10,740 6,563 6,563 5,2475,247 723 723 94,306 94,306 90,891 

Charges for support servicesCharges for support services - - - - 205 205 - - - - 205 205 166 

Service Charge IncomeService Charge Income 3,871 3,871 1,205 1,205 2,742 2,742 87 87 736 736 8,641 8,641 8,571 

Net rents receivable 74,905 74,905 11,945 11,945 9,510 9,510 5,3345,334 1,458 1,458 103,152 103,152 99,628 

Revenue grants from local authorities  
and other agencies 452 452 - - - - - - - - 452 452 388 

Total income from social housing lettings 75,357 75,357 11,945 11,945 9,510 9,510 5,3345,334 1,458 1,458 103,604 103,604 100,016 

Expenditure on letting activities
Management costManagement cost (11,701)(11,701) (2,863)(2,863) (1,255)(1,255) - - - - (15,819)(15,819) (16,284)

Service charge cost (6,663)(6,663) (1,631)(1,631) (715)(715) - - (736)(736) (9,745)(9,745) (8,203)

Routine Maintenance (8,951)(8,951) - - (960)(960) - - - - (9,911)(9,911) (8,553)

Planned Maintenance (4,403)(4,403) - - (472)(472) - - - - (4,875)(4,875) (4,621)

Rent losses from bad debts (485)(485) (118)(118) (52)(52) - - - - (655)(655) (925)

Depreciation (16,577)(16,577) - - (1,777)(1,777) (1,181)(1,181) - - (19,535)(19,535) (18,923)

Total expenditure on social housing lettings (48,780)(48,780) (4,612)(4,612) (5,231)(5,231) (1,181)(1,181) (736)(736) (60,541)(60,541) (57,509)

Operating surplus on social housing lettings 26,57126,571 7,3387,338 4,2794,279 4,1534,153 722 722 43,06443,064 42,507 

Void losses (406)(406) (81)(81) (349) (349) - - (9)(9) (845)(845) (832)

3:  Income and Expenditure from Social Housing Lettings – Association3:  Income and Expenditure from Social Housing Lettings – Association 4. Number of Units Owned and in Management4. Number of Units Owned and in Management

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.
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Non-executive directorsNon-executive directors
£’000£’000

SalariesSalaries
£’000£’000

ExpensesExpenses

2022 2022 
£’000£’000
TotalTotal

2021 2021 
£’000£’000
TotalTotal

Paul Leinster
 28  28  -  -  28  28  28  28 

Chair of the Board

Martin Hurst
 4  -  4  17 

Chair of the Group Treasury Committee (retired 30 June 2021)

Ian Ailles
 23  -  23  23 2323

Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee and senior independent directorChair of the Audit and Risk Committee and senior independent director

Paul High
 17  -  17  17 1717

Chair of the Development and Assets Committee

Shirley Pointer
 17  -  17  17 1717

Chair of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee

Geraldine O’Sullivan
 17  -  17  17 1616

Independent non-executive director 

Bob Tattar
 12  -  12  12  12  12 

Independent Independent non-executive director

Katherine Horrell
 13  -  13  13 --

Treasury non-executive director and Committee Chair (appointed 01 July 2021)

Grand Total  131  - 131  130 

5. Non-executive Directors’ and Directors’ Emoluments
The board of directors of the association comprises of non-executive directors and executive directors together with co-opted 
members. Total emoluments in the period to 31 March 2022 for the non-executive directors amounted to £132k (2021: £130k). 
      

Board Executive DirectorsBoard Executive Directors
Salary Salary 
£’000£’000

Benefits  Benefits  
in kind in kind 
 £’000 £’000

Pension Pension 
contributions contributions 

 £’000 £’000

2022 2022 
TotalTotal

£’000£’000

20212021
Total  Total  

£’000£’000

Kevin Bolt
 214  214  8  8  25  25  247  247 236236

Chief Executive

Julian Pearce
 180  7  -  187  184 

Chief Financial Officer

Jeff Astle
 144  144  7  7  9  9  160  160  158  158 

Executive Director of Development and Sales

Julie Wittich
 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  79  79 

Executive Director of Assets (resigned 30 September 2020)

Sub Total – Board Executive Directors  538  22  34  594  657 

Other executive directorsOther executive directors
Salary Salary 
£’000£’000

Benefits  Benefits  
in kind in kind 
 £’000 £’000

Pension Pension 
contributions contributions 

 £’000 £’000

2022 2022 
TotalTotal

£’000£’000

20212021
Total  Total  

£’000£’000

Gosia Motler
 133  133  7  7  16  16  156  156  151  151 

Director of Strategy and Corporate Finance

Anna Humphries
 127  127  7  7  15  15  149  149  140  140 

Director of Customers and ServicesDirector of Customers and Services

Adrian Moore
 108  108  7  7  20  20  135 135  126  126 

Director of IT

Lindsay Todd
 96  96  6  6  11  11  113  113  106  106 

Director of HR and Employee Engagement

Paul Cook
 114  114  7  7  14  14  135 135 104104

Director of Property Services and Compliance

Philippa Spratley
 100  100  7  7  12  12  119  119 104104

Director of Governance and Compliance 

Eddie Kelly
 111  111  7  7  6  6  124  124  -  - 

Director of External Affairs (appointed 29 March 2021)

Liz Parsons
 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 6565

Director of Quality and Communications (resigned 30 September 2020)

Sub Total – Other executive directors  789  789  48  48  94  94  931  931  796  796 

Grand Total  1,327  70  128  1,525  1,453 

5. Non-executive Directors’ and Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

In addition to the above, a total of £8k (2021: £8k) was paid to members of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Group Treasury Committee In addition to the above, a total of £8k (2021: £8k) was paid to members of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Group Treasury Committee 
who are not members of the bpha Board. These positions are paid annual remuneration of up to £4k per member. who are not members of the bpha Board. These positions are paid annual remuneration of up to £4k per member. 

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.  Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.  

      

Kevin Bolt, who as Chief Executive, is the highest paid Director, is entitled to a contribution of 12% of basic salary to be paid  
into a defined contribution scheme.      

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.   
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DepartmentDepartment FemaleFemale MaleMale
2022 2022 
TotalTotal FemaleFemale MaleMale

20212021
TotalTotal

Executive and Senior Management Team 8 8 6 14 14 9 6 6 15 15 

Development and Sales 36 36 20 56 56 36 24 24 60 60 

Finance and IT 48 48 37 85 85 43 35 35 78 78 

HR, Governance and External AffairsHR, Governance and External Affairs 35 35 6 41 41 26 9 9 35 35 

Service Delivery 180 180 96 276 276 162 97 97 259 259 

307 307 165 165 472 472 276 276 171 171 447 447 

6. Employee Information
The number of persons expressed in full-time equivalents employed at the year end was:

Employee costs (for the above persons)Employee costs (for the above persons)
20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Wages and salaries 16,631 16,631 15,838 

Social security costs 1,777 1,777 1,720 

Pension - defined benefit current service cost (note 21) 1,0201,020 928 

Pension - defined contribution costPension - defined contribution cost 1,040 1,040 917 

20,46820,468 19,403 

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Interest Receivable 40 40 37 37 71 71 71 71 

My Choice HomeBuy Interest ReceivableMy Choice HomeBuy Interest Receivable 874 874 874 874 463 463 463 463 

Interest receivable from joint ventureInterest receivable from joint venture  -  - - - 14 14 - - 

914914 911911 548548 534534

7. Interest Receivable and Other Income

Included within the amounts disclosed above is interest receivable by Bushmead Homes Limited, a fellow group company, of £nil (2021: £14k). Included within the amounts disclosed above is interest receivable by Bushmead Homes Limited, a fellow group company, of £nil (2021: £14k). 
              

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

On bonds, bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 64,90064,900 64,90064,900 43,33943,339 43,33943,339

Movement on termination of swap (note 20) (28,857) (28,857) (5,910) (5,910)

Other loan costsOther loan costs 1,4711,471 1,4711,471 1,4631,463 1,4631,463

On defined benefit pension scheme (note 21)On defined benefit pension scheme (note 21) 733733 733733 575575 575575

Less: interest payable capitalised on housing properties under construction (3,631)(3,631) (3,631)(3,631) (4,479)(4,479) (4,479)(4,479)

34,61634,616 34,61634,616 34,98834,988 34,98834,988

Capitalisation rate used to determine finance costs capitalised during the period Capitalisation rate used to determine finance costs capitalised during the period 4.30%4.30% 4.30%4.30% 4.15% 4.15%

8. Interest Payable and Similar Charges

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Full-time equivalents are calculated based on a standard working week of 37 hours from a year end position.Full-time equivalents are calculated based on a standard working week of 37 hours from a year end position.

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.

The full-time equivalent number of colleagues who receive remunerationThe full-time equivalent number of colleagues who receive remuneration 20222022 20212021

£60,001 to £70,000  22  22  16 

£70,001 to £80,000  12  12  15 

£80,001 to £90,000  11  11  9 

£90,001 to £100,000£90,001 to £100,000  3  3  1 

£100,001 to £110,000  3  3  2 

The number of colleagues (excluding directors) who receive remuneration on a full-time equivalent The number of colleagues (excluding directors) who receive remuneration on a full-time equivalent 
basis, including employer pension contribution, in excess of £60k are as follows: basis, including employer pension contribution, in excess of £60k are as follows: 
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20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

Surplus on ordinary activities is stated after charging:

Depreciation of housing propertiesDepreciation of housing properties 19,604 19,604 18,844 18,844 

Depreciation of other tangible fixed assetsDepreciation of other tangible fixed assets 1,466 1,466 1,671 1,671 

Impairment losses on inventories 2,893 2,893 - - 

Auditors' remuneration (excluding VAT)Auditors' remuneration (excluding VAT)

for audit servicesfor audit services 84 84 75 75 

for non-audit servicesfor non-audit services

service chargesservice charges 7 7 7 

otherother - - - 

Operating lease paymentsOperating lease payments

Vehicles, computers and equipmentVehicles, computers and equipment 36 36 35 

Land and buildingsLand and buildings 227 227 227 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

Profit for the year after taxation - bpha group 40,614 37,610 37,610 
-  Less: bpha Limited  

(excluding gift aid) (40,952)(40,952) (36,891)

-  Less: Items eliminated on  
consolidation:   

   Impairment of Investment  
in Subsidiary (1,835) -

 Depreciation eliminated (56) -

 Intercompany profit 41

(1,891) 41 

(2,229)(2,229) 760 

Total tax (credit)/expense (599)(599) - - 

(Loss) / Profit excluding taxation (2,828)(2,828) 760 760 

Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (537)(537) 144 144 

Relief as a result of gift aid distribution - - (188)(188)

Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes 
in tax rates (144)(144) - - 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 82 90 

Adjustment relating to share in associate profit - (46)

Total (credit)/tax expense (599)(599) - - 

9. Surplus for the Financial Year

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.

During the year, Bushmead Homes Limited development schemes were reviewed, which are all at an early stage with no During the year, Bushmead Homes Limited development schemes were reviewed, which are all at an early stage with no 
completed properties awaiting sale. Following this review, impairment provisions were been made to reduce the land value held  completed properties awaiting sale. Following this review, impairment provisions were been made to reduce the land value held  
in current assets for schemes at Gamlingay, Swavesey and Over into line with the latest view of likely net realisable value.in current assets for schemes at Gamlingay, Swavesey and Over into line with the latest view of likely net realisable value.

Total tax expense recognised in the group statement  
of comprehensive income

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

Total Tax (599)(599) - - 

11. Taxation 

The association has charitable status and is not subject to corporation tax on surpluses arising as a result of,  The association has charitable status and is not subject to corporation tax on surpluses arising as a result of,  
or earned in furtherance of, its charitable objectives.        or earned in furtherance of, its charitable objectives.        

The association has a number of subsidiary companies, some of which do not have charitable status and which The association has a number of subsidiary companies, some of which do not have charitable status and which 
therefore are subject to corporation tax. For these entities, the charge for corporation tax is based on the result for the therefore are subject to corporation tax. For these entities, the charge for corporation tax is based on the result for the 
period and takes into account deferred taxation. Deferred taxation is provided on differences between the treatment period and takes into account deferred taxation. Deferred taxation is provided on differences between the treatment 
of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes, unless it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes, unless it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. foreseeable future. 

The tables below present disclosure in respect of Bushmead Homes Limited, whose results are consolidated  The tables below present disclosure in respect of Bushmead Homes Limited, whose results are consolidated  
into the bpha group accounts.         into the bpha group accounts.         

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

10. Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets - Housing Properties

2022 Group 2021 Group

Disposal Disposal 
ProceedsProceeds

£’000£’000
Cost of SalesCost of Sales

£’000£’000

Gain on Gain on 
DisposalDisposal

£’000£’000

Disposal Disposal 
ProceedsProceeds

£’000£’000
Cost of SalesCost of Sales

£’000£’000

Gain on Gain on 
DisposalDisposal

£’000£’000

Shared Ownership staircasing 18,79318,793 (8,361) 10,43210,432 12,539 (6,144)(6,144) 6,3956,395

Asset Management and Other Sales 3,9113,911 (1,484) 2,4272,427 2,696 (904)(904) 1,7921,792

Right To Buy 345345 (216) 129129 513 (266)(266) 247247

MyChoice HomeBuyMyChoice HomeBuy 2,8352,835 (1,837) 998998 2,005 (1,388)(1,388) 617617

Open Market HomeBuy 947947 (585) 362362 744 (504)(504) 240240

26,83126,831 (12,483)(12,483) 14,34814,348 18,497 (9,206)(9,206) 9,2919,291

Operating cost (2,653) (2,374)

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets 11,69511,695 6,9176,917
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12. Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible Tangible 
fixed assets fixed assets 

– housing – housing 
properties properties 

(shared (shared 
ownership)ownership)

£’000£’000

Tangible fixed Tangible fixed 
assets – housing assets – housing 

properties properties 
(general needs)(general needs)

£’000£’000

Housing Housing 
properties properties 

in course of in course of 
construction construction 

(shared (shared 
ownership)ownership)

£’000£’000

Housing Housing 
properties properties 

in course of in course of 
construction construction 

(general (general 
needs)needs)

£’000£’000

Long Long 
leaseholdleasehold

£’000£’000

Furniture and Furniture and 
equipmentequipment

£’0000£’0000
TotalTotal

£’000£’000

Cost
At 31 March 2021 197,237 197,237 1,103,528 14,762 14,762 30,585 30,585 1,830 1,830 11,893 11,893 1,359,835 1,359,835 

Schemes completed in the periodSchemes completed in the period 14,427 14,427 30,561 30,561 (14,427)(14,427) (30,561)(30,561)  -  -  - -

AdditionsAdditions  -  - 103 103 22,110 22,110 27,483 27,483  - 1,063 1,063 50,759 

Transfer to Current Asset  -  -  -  - (11,196)(11,196)  -  -  -  -  - (11,196)

ImprovementsImprovements  -  - 15,711 15,711  -  - 4,774 4,774  -  -  - 20,485 

Interest capitalised  -  -  -  - 1,823 1,823 1,808 1,808  -  -  - 3,631 

Disposals (7,265)(7,265) (2,710)(2,710)  -  -  -  - -  -  - (9,975)

At 31 March 2022 204,399 1,147,193 13,072 34,089 1,830 12,956 1,413,539 

Depreciation
At 31 March 2021At 31 March 2021  -  - 97,842 97,842  -  -  -  - 1,500 9,489 9,489 108,831 

Charge for year  -  - 19,604 19,604  -  -  -  - 131 1,334 1,334 21,069 

On disposals  -  - (1,414)(1,414)  -  -  -  -  -  -  - (1,414)

At 31 March 2022  - 116,032  -  - 1,631 10,823 128,486 

Net book value at 
At 31 March 2022 204,399 1,031,161 13,072 34,089 199 2,133 1,285,053 

Net book value at 

At 31 March 2021 197,237 1,005,686 14,762 30,585 330 2,404 1,251,004 

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

Amounts capitalised  20,485  12,357 

Routine and planned maintenance  14,785  13,174 

 35,270  25,531 

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.

12. Expenditure on Improvements to Existing Properties

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Current asset work in progress  17,743  9,061  20,370  9,966 

Completed properties held for sale  7,331  7,331  17,308  14,456 

 25,074  16,392  37,678  24,422 

12. Completed Properties and Work in Progress Transferred to Current Assets

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

The cost of shared ownership properties in the course of construction is apportioned between the equity percentage expected to be retained 
by the association and the portion expected to be sold. The cost attributable to the percentage to be sold is included within current assets, 
and that expected to be retained is included in fixed assets “Housing properties in the course of construction (shared ownership)”. 

Current asset work in progress is stated in the table above net of an impairment provision of £2,893k. This impairment provision has been 
made during the year following a review of the Bushmead Homes development schemes. It brings the current asset values into line with the 
latest view of likely net realisable values.        
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13. Investment Properties

The valuation of investment properties is carried out by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualifi-
cation (Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ (RICS) qualification) and has recent experience in the location and class of the investment 
properties being valued. The valuations were undertaken in accordance with RICS Professional Standards January 2014 (the “RICS Red 
Book”) published November 2013 and effective from 6 January 2014, in particular in accordance with the requirements of VPS3 entitled  
Valuation reports. The principal components of the valuations are the use of the property, location, income received, tenant covenant,  
length of lease, tenure and condition of the property. The properties have been valued on an investment basis, adopting the comparable 
method of valuation whereby valuations have had regard to recent market transactions of similar properties.     
        

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Investment properties 17,080 17,080 16,769 16,769 

The reported balance and movement in the investment properties following the annual valuation was:

Opening balance 16,769 16,769 15,633 15,633 

Revaluation in the year 311 311 1,321 1,321 

Reclassification to Fixed Assets - - (185) (185)

Closing balance 17,080 17,080 16,769 16,769 

14. Trade and Other Debtors

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Accounts falling due within one year:

Rental and service charges debtors 5,529 5,529 4,704 4,704 

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts (4,366) (4,366) (3,716) (3,716)

1,163 1,163 988 988 

Other debtors 2,532 2,532 2,839 2,839 

Deferred tax asset 599  -  -  - 

Prepayment and accrued income 3,490 3,483 4,296 4,289 

Amounts owed by group undertakings  - 1,324  - 1,333 

6,621 7,339 7,135 8,461 

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts (1,768) (1,768) (1,924) (1,924)

4,853 5,571 5,211 6,537 

Accounts falling due after more than one year:

Loan to Gloucestershire Care Partnership Limited 409 409 401 401 

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts (409) (409) (401) (401)

6,016 6,734 6,199 7,525 

15. Current Asset Investments

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Mark to market cash collateral deposit  -  - 8,980 8,980 

Cash collateral on securing loan and interest 1,919 1,919 2,867 2,867 

Current asset investments 1,919 1,919 11,847 11,847 

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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16. Creditors: Amounts Falling due within One Year

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Trade Creditors 475 471 565 565 

Contracts for capital works and retentions 6,609 6,484 8,543 8,434 

Accruals and deferred income 4,448 4,442 4,832 4,829 

Debt (note 19) 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 

Interest payable 7,843 1,584 13,627 7,367 

Rent and service charges received in advance 3,195 3,195 2,930 2,930 

Taxation and social security 22 43 35 63 

Recycled Capital Grant Fund (note 18) 388 388 6,000 6,000 

Amounts due to group undertakings  - 6,259  - 6,259 

Other creditors 3,490 3,175 2,593 2,585 

38,970 38,541 51,625 51,532 

Accruals and deferred income includes £252k (2021: £253k) in respect of grants received in advance for specific purposes.  Accruals and deferred income includes £252k (2021: £253k) in respect of grants received in advance for specific purposes.  

Payments to Creditors Payments to Creditors 
The association’s policy is to pay purchase invoices when due.The association’s policy is to pay purchase invoices when due.

17. Creditors: Amounts Falling due After More than One Year

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Debt (note 19) 838,209 542,847 850,414 554,396 

Amounts due to group undertakings  - 296,685  - 297,350 

Recycled Capital Grant Fund (note 18) 8,703 8,703 10,336 10,336 

Deferred government grant 57,558 57,558 46,093 46,093 

Grant on HomeBuy and MyChoice HomeBuy loans 20,034 20,034 21,676 21,676 

Major Repairs Fund held on behalf of –  Oxfordshire Care 
Partnership 4,493 4,493 4,310 4,310 

– Leaseholders 4,965 4,965 4,455 4,455 

Bond premium 24,052 24,052 24,763 24,763 

958,014 959,337 962,047 963,379 

18. Recycled Capital Fund (RCGF)

Recycled Capital Grant FundRecycled Capital Grant Fund
Total Total 

£’000£’000

At 1 April 16,197 

Grants recycled

Housing Properties 1,541 

MyChoice HomeBuy 1,055 

Open Market HomeBuy 587 

Interest Accrued 25 

Purchase/Development of Properties (10,314)

Balance at 31 March 9,091 

Amount falling due within 1 Year 388 

Amount falling due after more than 1 Year 8,703 

9,091 

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Drawn debt

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

Breakdown of debt:

Bank and building society loans 419,000 431,500 

The Housing Finance Corporation 36,000 36,000 

Bonds 400,000 400,000 

Other loans 1,429 1,524 

856,429 869,024 

Deferred costs (5,721) (6,110)

850,708 862,914 

20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Debt is repayable as follows:

Due within one year 12,500 12,500 

Due after one year and within two years 12,500 12,500 

Due after two years and within five years 37,500 37,500 

Due after more than five years 788,208 800,414 

850,708 862,914 

19. Debt Analysis 
The Group has a policy to ensure that it has diverse funding sources and at the year end it had a mixture of secured The Group has a policy to ensure that it has diverse funding sources and at the year end it had a mixture of secured 
and unsecured facilities, with 51% of all drawn debt through capital markets. Bank and capital markets debt is subject and unsecured facilities, with 51% of all drawn debt through capital markets. Bank and capital markets debt is subject 
to fixed rates of interest (excluding margin on the loan) ranging from 1.47% to 10.64% and at variable rates linked to to fixed rates of interest (excluding margin on the loan) ranging from 1.47% to 10.64% and at variable rates linked to 
the benchmark rate (currently SONIA) with all secured funding having specific charges on the association’s housing the benchmark rate (currently SONIA) with all secured funding having specific charges on the association’s housing 
properties. Our syndicated bank loan facility has an amortised repayment profile and will be fully repaid by January properties. Our syndicated bank loan facility has an amortised repayment profile and will be fully repaid by January 
2041 with other bank and capital markets debt being repaid by January 2047.    2041 with other bank and capital markets debt being repaid by January 2047.    

In capital markets the Group has raised £350m by issuing its secured public bond through its subsidiary bpha Finance In capital markets the Group has raised £350m by issuing its secured public bond through its subsidiary bpha Finance 
plc, which is repayable in 2044. In addition the Group has issued £125m US private placement through bpha Limited plc, which is repayable in 2044. In addition the Group has issued £125m US private placement through bpha Limited 
which has five tranches with maturities between 2030 and 2040. The private placement has been issued with £118m  which has five tranches with maturities between 2030 and 2040. The private placement has been issued with £118m  
on an unsecured basis wih the remaining £7m issued on a secured basis.       on an unsecured basis wih the remaining £7m issued on a secured basis.       

At 31 March 2022 within the Group’s drawn debt portfolio there was a total of £118m of unsecured debt.At 31 March 2022 within the Group’s drawn debt portfolio there was a total of £118m of unsecured debt.   
   

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.  

Under FRS102 (s17.32) the Group is required to disclose the carrying value of property pledged as security for liabilities and contractual 
commitments. The carrying value of this property at the end of the year was £854m (2021: £877m). 

The remaining properties not pledged as security are available to support our unsecured debt and the charging valuation provided by 
external valuers at the end of the year was £463m (2021: £363m).      

20. Financial Instruments 
The Association has stand-alone International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) arrangements in order  The Association has stand-alone International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) arrangements in order  
to hedge against the long term risk of an increase in variable interest rates under its principal loan facility.  to hedge against the long term risk of an increase in variable interest rates under its principal loan facility.  
As a Co-operative and Community Benefit Society with charitable objectives and a registered social landlord,  As a Co-operative and Community Benefit Society with charitable objectives and a registered social landlord,  
the Association does not trade for profit and is regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing which has issued the Association does not trade for profit and is regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing which has issued 
extensive guidelines on the use of derivative instruments by registered social landlords.    extensive guidelines on the use of derivative instruments by registered social landlords.    

The Association has applied this guidance in entering into derivative transactions which include swaptions in which the The Association has applied this guidance in entering into derivative transactions which include swaptions in which the 
bank counterparties have the right to enter an equal and opposite swap at various dates in the future and these are bank counterparties have the right to enter an equal and opposite swap at various dates in the future and these are 
detailed in the table below.         detailed in the table below.         

During the year the Group through its annual review of its financial instruments undertook to rationalise its derivative During the year the Group through its annual review of its financial instruments undertook to rationalise its derivative 
portfolio. The Group terminated interest rate derivatives with a nominal of £101m and maturity dates ranging between portfolio. The Group terminated interest rate derivatives with a nominal of £101m and maturity dates ranging between 
2027 and 2041, releasing collateral, reducing future risk of margin calls and reducing future interest costs.   2027 and 2041, releasing collateral, reducing future risk of margin calls and reducing future interest costs.   

All of the interest rate swaps detailed under (i) below are hedge effective but the Association has chosen not to hedge All of the interest rate swaps detailed under (i) below are hedge effective but the Association has chosen not to hedge 
account for these. account for these.        

CounterpartyCounterparty
Nominal 2022 Nominal 2022 

£’000£’000
Nominal 2021 Nominal 2021 

£’000£’000

Market valuation; Market valuation; 
liability at 2022liability at 2022

£’000£’000

Market valuation; Market valuation; 
liability at 2021  liability at 2021  

£’000£’000

Movement  Movement  
2022  2022  
£’000£’000

(i)  Interest rate swaps: bpha pays fixed,  
receives variable 9,880 9,880 110,880 3,728 3,728 43,539 (39,811)(39,811)

(ii)  Margin swap: bpha pays floating plus margin, 
receives floating 20,000 20,000 20,000 4,558 4,558 5,087 (529)(529)

(iii)  Swaptions – banks' option to enter swaps to 
exactly offset specific swaps detailed above 9,880 9,880 24,880 315 315 499 (184) (184) 

Total  39,760 39,760  155,760  155,760  8,601  8,601  49,125  49,125 (40,524)(40,524)

The movement for the year is the change in market valuation until termination date or, in the case of swaps retained, until 31 
March. In 2021/22 there is an additional £28.9m of break costs in relation to the Barclays derivatives.  

Reconciliation of change in value of Financial Instruments
20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Market value; liability at start of year 49,125 67,560 

Change in market value; increase / (decrease) in liability (11,667) (12,525)

Termination (28,857) (5,910)

 

Market value; liability at end of year 8,601 49,125 

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.
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21. Pensions
The association is an admitted member of the Bedfordshire Pension Fund (“the fund”). This is a multi-employer The association is an admitted member of the Bedfordshire Pension Fund (“the fund”). This is a multi-employer 
scheme with more than one participating employer, which is administered by Bedford Borough Council under scheme with more than one participating employer, which is administered by Bedford Borough Council under 
the Regulations governing the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), and is a defined benefit scheme. The the Regulations governing the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), and is a defined benefit scheme. The 
association closed admission of new members to the fund from 31 March 2010. At 31 March 2022 there were 87 (2021: association closed admission of new members to the fund from 31 March 2010. At 31 March 2022 there were 87 (2021: 
87) colleagues who were active members of the fund. 87) colleagues who were active members of the fund. 

The employers’ contributions to the fund by the association for the year ended 31 March 2022 totalled £1,389k (2021: The employers’ contributions to the fund by the association for the year ended 31 March 2022 totalled £1,389k (2021: 
£1,190k) which included both a lump sum contribution together with an amount relating to current colleagues for £1,190k) which included both a lump sum contribution together with an amount relating to current colleagues for 
which the employers’ contribution rate from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 was 22.1%. From 1 April 2022 the employer’s which the employers’ contribution rate from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 was 22.1%. From 1 April 2022 the employer’s 
contribution rate will remain at 22.1% with an additional lump sum cash contribution of £598k to be made in the next contribution rate will remain at 22.1% with an additional lump sum cash contribution of £598k to be made in the next 
year (estimated total contributions for 2022/23: £1,172k).        year (estimated total contributions for 2022/23: £1,172k).        

Triennial actuarial valuations of the fund are performed by an independent, professionally qualified actuary using the Triennial actuarial valuations of the fund are performed by an independent, professionally qualified actuary using the 
projected unit method. The most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at 31 March 2019 and the next projected unit method. The most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at 31 March 2019 and the next 
will be completed during 2022.          will be completed during 2022.          

The market value of the fund assets at 31 March 2019 triennial valuation was £2,291m (2016: £1,733m) and the level  The market value of the fund assets at 31 March 2019 triennial valuation was £2,291m (2016: £1,733m) and the level  
of funding was 80.5% (2016: 70.9%). The main actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were:    of funding was 80.5% (2016: 70.9%). The main actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were:    
                    
              

Financial Assumptions
The main financial assumptions used by the actuary in assessing liabilities on a basis consistent with FRS 102 were:

2022 2022 
% per annum% per annum

20212021
% per annum% per annum

Discount Rate 2.75% 2.05%

Pension Increases 3.25% 2.75%

Salary Increases 2.30% 2.00%

21. Pensions (continued) 

Mortality Assumptions

The post retirement mortality assumption adopted for all calculations is based on Club Vita mortality analysis. These The post retirement mortality assumption adopted for all calculations is based on Club Vita mortality analysis. These 
base tables are then projected using the CMI_2020 Model, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% per base tables are then projected using the CMI_2020 Model, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% per 
annum, smoothing parameter of 7.5, an initial addition parameter of 0.5% per annum and a 2020 weighting of 25%. annum, smoothing parameter of 7.5, an initial addition parameter of 0.5% per annum and a 2020 weighting of 25%. 

Based on these assumptions, the assumed life expectations from age 65 are:Based on these assumptions, the assumed life expectations from age 65 are:

Males 2022Males 2022 Males 2021Males 2021 Female 2022Female 2022 Female 2021Female 2021

Retiring today 22.0 years22.0 years 21.9 years 24.4 years24.4 years 24.3 years

Retiring in 20 years 22.9 years22.9 years 22.8 years 26.0 years26.0 years 26.0 years

Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Change in assumptions at 31 March 2022: £’000£’000 £’000£’000 £’000£’000

Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% 0.0%0.0% -0.1%

Present Value of Obligation  80,711  82,398  82,398 84,122 

Projected Service Cost  1,121  1,160  1,160 1,200 

Adjustment to long term salary increase +0.1% 0.0%0.0% -0.1%

Present Value of Obligation  82,539  82,398  82,398 82,258 

Projected Service Cost  1,160  1,160  1,160 1,159 

Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation +0.1% 0.0%0.0% -0.1%

Present Value of Obligation  83,971  82,398  82,398 80,857 

Projected Service Cost  1,200  1,160  1,160 1,121 

Adjustments to life expectancy assumptions +1 Year NoneNone -1 Year

Present Value of Obligation  86,029  82,398  82,398 78,926 

Projected Service Cost  1,210  1,160  1,160 1,111 

Actual Return on Plan Assets: 20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Interest income on plan assets 1,024 1,010 

Return on plan assets less interest 4,281 6,622 

Actual return on plan assets 5,305 7,632 

20192019
% per annum% per annum

20162016
% per annum% per annum

Discount rate 4.6% 4.1%

CPI inflation 2.6% 2.1%

Salary increases 3.6% 2.4%

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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21. Pensions (continued) 

Major Categories of Plan Assets with Estimated Values and as a Percentage of Total Plan Assets 
The expected rates of return for all fund assets are set equal to the discount rate for both the current  The expected rates of return for all fund assets are set equal to the discount rate for both the current  
and prior year as required under FRS 102. and prior year as required under FRS 102. 

20222022
AssetsAssets
 £’000 £’000

20222022
AssetsAssets

%%

20212021
AssetsAssets
 £’000 £’000

20212021
AssetsAssets

%%

Equities 33,455 61% 35,248 71%

Bonds 13,580 25% 9,044 18%

Property 6,764 12% 4,709 9%

Cash 1,129 2% 1,198 2%

Total 54,928 100% 50,199 100%

2022 2022 
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

20202020
£’000£’000

2019 2019 
£’000£’000

20182018
£’000£’000

Present value of defined benefit obligation (82,398)(82,398) (86,206) (68,172)(68,172) (73,593) (70,972)

Fair value of scheme assets 54,92854,928 50,199 42,841 42,841 46,756 43,749 

Deficit on scheme (27,470)(27,470) (36,007)(36,007) (25,331)(25,331) (26,837) (27,223)

Experience (loss) / gain on defined benefit obligation (248)(248) 665 1,787 1,787 - - 

Return/(loss) on assets less interest 4,2814,281 6,622 (4,014)(4,014) 1,596 (793)(793)

Amounts for the Current and Previous Four Years are as Follows: 

Analysis of the Amount Charged to The Statement of Comprehensive Income: 20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Current service cost 1,772 887 

Net interest 733 575 

Administration expenses 60 41 

Total operating charge 2,565 1,503 

Analysis of net interest charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income: 20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Expected return on pension scheme assets (1,024) (1,010)

Interest on pension scheme liabilities 1,757 1,585 

Net interest charge 733 575 

21. Pensions (continued) 

Analysis of the Amount Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest 4,281 6,622 

Changes in financial and other assumptions underlying the present value of scheme liabilities 5,432 (16,985)

Actuarial gains / (losses) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 9,713 (10,363)

Movement in Deficit During the Year 20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Association’s share of scheme deficit at beginning of year (36,007) (25,331)

Movement in year:

Current service cost (1,247) (887)

Past service cost (including curtailments) (525) - 

Administration expenses (60) (41)

Employer contributions 1,389 1,190 

Other finance costs (733) (575)

Actuarial gains 9,713 (10,363)

Association’s share of scheme deficit at end of year (27.470) (36,007)

Changes in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation are as Follows:

20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Opening defined benefit obligation 86,206 68,172 

Current service cost 1,247 887 

Past service cost (including curtailments) 525 - 

Interest cost 1,757 1,585 

Contributions by members 198 210 

Actuarial (gains)/losses (5,432) 16,985 

Estimated benefits paid (2,103) (1,633)

Closing defined benefit obligation 82,398 86,206 

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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21. Pensions (continued) 

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets are as Follows: 20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Opening fair value of plan assets 50,199 42,841 

Expected return on assets 1,024 1,010 

Contributions by members 198 210 

Contributions by employer 1,389 1,190 

Administration Expenses (60) (41)

Actuarial (losses)/gains 4,281 6,622 

Benefits paid (2,103) (1,633)

Closing fair value of plan assets 54,928 50,199 

2022 2022 
£’000£’000

2021 2021 
£’000£’000

20202020
£’000£’000

20192019
£’000£’000

2018 2018 
£’000£’000

Actuarial gains / (losses) on plan assets 4,2814,281 6,622 (4,014) 1,596 (793)

Experience (losses) / gains on share  
of scheme liabilities: (248)(248) 665 1,787 1,787 - - - 

Total amount recognised in other  
comprehensive income 9,7139,713 (10,363) 1,971 1,971 611 643 643 

History of Experience Gains and Losses 

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.

During the year a consultation has taken place with the current members of the defined benefit pension scheme. Following 
this consultation, it has been decided to close the scheme to the current members on 30 September 2022.

22. Called Up Share Capital
Each non-executive member of the Board other than the local authority nominated member, together with Bedfordshire 
Borough Council, holds one ordinary share of £1 in the association.      

The shares provide members with the right to vote at general meetings, but do not provide any rights to dividends or distribution 
on winding up. Shares are cancelled when the holder ceases to be a qualifying member of the Board. 

20222022
GroupGroup

££

20212021
GroupGroup

££

Allotted, issued and fully paid ordinary shares 7 7

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is the same as association.

23. Reserves GroupGroup
Revenue ReserveRevenue Reserve

£’000£’000

AssociationAssociation
Revenue ReserveRevenue Reserve

£’000£’000

At 1 April 2021 318,726 317,512 

Surplus for yearSurplus for year 40,614 41,942

Other comprehensive income for the yearOther comprehensive income for the year 9,713 9,713

At 31 March 2022 369,053 369,167

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Based on the group funding strategy, the contracted capital commitments are planned to be funded by:

Group Funding Group Funding 
PlanPlan

20222022
£m£m

Group Funding Group Funding 
PlanPlan
20212021

£m£m

Recycled capital grant funding  - 5 

Surpluses 77 39 

Loans 44 29 

121 73 

Operating leases
At 31 March 2022, the association had non-cancellable operating lease rentals payable as follows:

GroupGroup
20222022
£’000£’000

GroupGroup
20212021

£’000£’000

Less than one year 267 262 

Between one and five years 139 389 

More than five years  -  - 

406 651 

During the year £263k was recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in respect of operating leases (2021: £262k).  
  

25. Grant Movement and Contingent Liability

GroupGroup
Reserve Reserve 
Amount  Amount  

£’000£’000

GroupGroup
Creditor Creditor 
Amount  Amount  

£’000£’000

Group
Total 

Amount 
£’000

Group
Deferred  

grant Work  
In Progress  

£’000
Total Grant  

£'000

At 31 March 2020 (271,899) (44,171) (316,070) - (316,070)

Additions to grant for work in progress under the accrual model - (2,283) (2,283) - (2,283)

Grant recycled 1,188 - 1,188 - 1,188

Grant amortised (361) 361 - - -

At 31 March 2021 (271,072) (46,093) (317,165) - (317,165)

Adjustment to separate Deferred Grant WIP and Completed - 7,111 7,111 (7,111) -

Adjustment to Contingent Liability Estimate 27,528 - 27,528 - 27,528

Grant Addition - WIP - - - (11,906) (11,906)

Grant transfer from WIP to Completed - (5,231) (5,231) 5,231 -

Grant recycled 1,542 - 1,542 - 1,542

Grant amortised (440) 440 - - -

At 31 March 2022 (242,442) (43,773) (286,215) (13,786) (300,001)

This excludes grant relating to HomeBuy and MyChoice HomeBuy loans (refer to note 17)     

As at 31 March 2022, grant which has been written off to reserves represents a contingent liability of £242.4m (2021: £271.1m).  
This contingent liability will be realised if the assets to which the written off grant relates are disposed.    

During the year, historic grants have been reconciled to primary documentation which has resulted in £27.5m adjustment to the reserve 
value presented.             

We have also separated grant creditor between grant attributable to completed properties and to work in progress.   

Grant amortised of £440k (2021: £361k) is included under other income (see note 3) and forms part of turnover reported for the group.  
Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.   
            

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

24. Financial Commitments GroupGroup
20222022
£’000£’000

AssociationAssociation
20222022
£’000£’000

GroupGroup
20212021

£’000£’000

AssociationAssociation
20212021

£’000£’000

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but has 

not been provided for in the financial statements 121,288 103,468 72,797 72,665 

Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the 

Board but has not yet been contracted for 29,922 29,922 48,811 48,811 

The above commitments will be financed primarily through borrowings, under existing loan arrangements or from access to debt capital 
markets, together with social housing grant and sale of shared ownership properties.    
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26. Reconciliation of Net Cashflow to Movement in Net Debt

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

(Decrease) / increase in cash (24,645) (25,737) 24,803 21,369 

Cash inflow from (increase) in liquid resources (9,928) (9,928) (7,250) (7,251)

Cash inflow from decrease / (increase) in debt and lease finance  
and set up fees 12,595 12,595 (13,985) (13,986)

(Increase) / decrease in net debt from cashflows (21,978) (23,070) 3,568 132 

Non-cashflow items (389) (379) (121) (118)

Total changes in net debt for the period (22,367) (23,449) 3,447 14 

Net debt brought forward at 1 April (785,597) (792,528) (789,044) (792,542)

Net debt at 31 March (807,964) (815,977) (785,597) (792,528)

27. Analysis of Net Debt
1 April 20211 April 2021

£’000£’000
CashflowCashflow

£’000£’000

Non-cashflow Non-cashflow 
itemsitems
£’000£’000

31 March 202231 March 2022
£’000£’000

Loans (869,024) 12,595 - (856,429)

Loan set up fees 6,110 - (389) 5,721 

Debt (862,914) 12,595 (389) (850,708)

Cash at bank and in hand 65,470 (24,645) - 40,825 

Fixed and current asset investments 11,847 (9,928) - 1,919 

Net debt (785,597) (21,978) (389) (807,964)

Association information has not been separately disclosed within this note as group is materially the same as association.

28. Post balance sheet events
It was announced on 6 April 2022 that bpha is in talks with two other housing associations,  
Futures Housing Group and Flagship Group, about a potential partnership arrangement.

29. Investment in Subsidiaries
The investments in the group and association comprise of investments in fellow group companies, which 
are eliminated on consolidation:

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Bushmead Homes Limited - 16,665 - 18,500 

Bpha Finance plc - 13 - 13 

- 16,678 - 18,513 

Bushmead Homes Limited 
Bushmead Homes Limited was a subsidiary of the association at the year end and is limited by shares. bpha Limited has the 
right to appoint members to the board of the subsidiary and thereby exercise control over it. bpha Limited owns all of the 
issued share capital.            

Bushmead Homes Limited’s principal activity is property development for open market sale.  

The association statement of comprehensive income includes the following transactions between the association and 
Bushmead Homes Limited:             

20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Income from central services 142 437 

Income from central services represents a reallocation of cost incurred by fellow group companies and is calculated  
on a cost of provision basis.

The association statement of financial position includes the following transactions between the association and Bushmead Homes Limited:

20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

£000£000 £000£000

Purchase of completed affordable properties - 353 

bpha Finance plc
bpha Finance plc is a special purpose vehicle for the purpose of issuing asset backed securities and on-lending the proceeds to 
bpha Limited. bpha Finance plc has issued 50,000 ordinary shares of £1 each, all of which are paid up to 25 pence. bpha Limited 
owns all of the issued share capital.          

The association’s statement of comprehensive income includes the following transactions between the association and bpha 
Finance plc:             

20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Interest income 13,244 13,243 

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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29. Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 

The Accounts Include the Following Transactions Between the Association and bpha Finance plc:

20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Bond premium and interest - bpha Finance plc 13,244 13,243 

Bond premium and interest - Association (13,244) (13,243)

- - 

The Amounts due From/(to) bpha Finance plc at the Year End are: 20222022
£’000£’000

20212021
£’000£’000

Amounts due for investment in bpha Finance plc (13) (13)

(13) (13)

30. Joint Arrangements
The association holds 50% of the shares in each of two joint arrangement companies, The Oxfordshire Care Partnership (OCP) 
and The Gloucestershire Care Partnership (GCP). The joint ventures are managed through a board of trustees on which the 
association and its partner, The Orders of St John Care Trust (OSJCT), are equally represented.   

OCP’s and GCP’s principal activities are the provision of care to elderly people through care homes. OCP and GCP provide 
housing, accommodation, nursing or other assistance to people who are elderly or disabled and the provision of associated 
facilities and amenities for such people. The joint arrangements have been structured such that the association owns the 
care homes and receives rents on these, and that OSJCT are the care home operator and takes the financial and other risks 
associated with the operation. If the profits OSJCT attains from the operations exceed an agreed level then the excess will be 
retained by OCP and GCP but if the operations are loss making, the loss is sustained by OSJCT and therefore, other than  
a small contribution to certain fixed costs, OCP and GCP would not suffer any loss.     

Any surplus from the joint arrangement companies shall be applied solely towards the promotion of charitable objects as 
determined by the trustees. No profits by way of dividends will be distributed to the members of the companies.  

bpha group holds a major repairs fund on behalf of OCP to cover the costs of repairs per agreement with OCP (see note 17). 

Under FRS102 section 15 ‘Investment in Joint Ventures’, the Association is required to prepare additional information including,  
on an equity accounting basis, its share of the results of the joint arrangement companies for the period to 31 March 2022 and 
the net assets as at 31 March 2022. However, since the association has no rights to the net profits or assets of the companies  
and has no rights to dividends, other returns or to assets in the event of being wound up, the association considers that it has  
no equity interest in the ventures and accordingly consolidates a nil interest.       
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31. Investment in Associates
bpha Limited (via Bushmead Homes Limited) has a 25% interest in Gog Magog Partnership LLP, whose principal activity  
is the development of residential accommodation for private sale and of affordable residential accommodation for sale  
to registered providers.          

Associates are accounted for in accordance with FRS102 Section 14 ‘Investments in Associates’ in the consolidated financial 
statements using the equity method. Within the subsidiary undertaking individual financial statements in which the investment  
is held, this is held as a fixed or current asset investment shown at cost less amounts written off.    

bpha Limited is required to prepare additional information including its share of the associate’s turnover for the period  
to 31 March 2022 and the its share of the assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022:      

20222022
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20222022
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

20212021
GroupGroup
£’000£’000

20212021
AssociationAssociation

£’000£’000

Share of turnover of associates  -  - 1,959  - 

Share of cost of sales of associates  -  - (1,488)  - 

 -  - 471  - 

Share of assets  -  - 206  - 

Share of liabilities  -  - (206)  - 

Share of net assets  -  -  -  - 

Investment as at 1 April  -  -  -  - 

Capital issued in the year  -  -  -  - 

Capital returned in the year  -  -  -  - 

Investment as at 31 March  -  -  -  - 

External Auditor
KPMG LLP

Internal Auditor 
BDO LLP 

Principal Solicitors
Blake Morgan LLP
Capsticks Solicitors LLP 
Clarke Wilmott LLP
Devonshires Solicitors LLP 
Pennington Manches Cooper LLP
Trowers and Hamlins LLP
Wentworth Sherwood LLP

Valuers 
Jones Lang LaSalle 
Savills (UK) Ltd

Bankers 
HSBC Bank plc

Company advisorsNotes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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20182018
£’m£’m

20192019
£’m£’m

20202020
£’m£’m

20212021
£’m£’m

20222022
£’m£’m

Turnover
Core operating business 95.9 98.7 103.0 110.2 112.1

Development and Sales Business 46.3 49.5 41.8 39.9 59.0

142.2 148.2 144.8 150.1 171.1

Operating surplus
Core operating business 47.7 44.4 44.7 47.7 46.9

Development and Sales Business 18.9 19.6 14.8 10.5 14.9

Fair value adjustments on investment properties (2.5) 3.9 0.9 1.3 0.3

64.1 67.9 60.4 59.5 62.1

Operating surplus as a % of turnover 45.0% 45.8% 41.7% 39.7% 36.3%

Net interest (31.5) (33.0) (32.7) (34.4) (33.7)

Underlying surplus for the year 32.6 34.9 27.7 25.1 28.3

Gains/(losses) re financial instruments and termination  
of hedging agreements 9.1 (0.8) (9.5) 12.5 11.7

Surplus before tax 41.7 34.1 18.2 37.6 40.0

Repairs and maintenance 10.1 11.0 12.1 13.2 14.8

Capitalised spending on improvements to housing properties 10.8 14.7 14.5 12.4 20.5

Total spending on repairing and maintaining  
our housing properties 20.9 25.7 26.6 25.5 35.3

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation,  
major repairs included (EBITDA MRI) 61.7 58.3 55.4 59.6 51.2

EBITDA MRI as a percentage of interest payable and similar charges 177% 156% 144% 151% 134%

Group Statement of comprehensive income

Turnover includes the capital receipts from disposal of fixed assets.

20182018
£’m£’m

20192019
£’m£’m

20202020
£’m£’m

20212021
£’m£’m

20222022
£’m£’m

Group statement of financial position
Housing fixed assets 1,073.4 1,167.4 1,224.6 1,248.6 1,282.9

Other assets less current liabilities 75.7 75.8 117.9 117.3 80.2

Total assets less current liabilities 1,149.1 1,243.2 1,342.5 1,365.9 1,363.1

Debt (due over one year) 731.4 774.0 848.8 862.9 850.7

Other long term liabilities 180.9 197.7 202.2 184.3 143.3

Total long term liabilities 912.3 971.7 1,051.0 1,047.2 994.0

Reserves: total 236.8 271.5 291.5 318.7 369.1

Total long term funding and reserves 1,149.1 1,243.2 1,342.5 1,365.9 1,363.1

20182018
£’m£’m

20192019
£’m£’m

20202020
£’m£’m

20212021
£’m£’m

20222022
£’m£’m

Group cash flow
Net cash from operating activities 57.1 60.0 58.7 60.2 64.2

Net interest paid (33.2) (34.8) (38.0) (38.8) (37.2)

Operating cashflow net of interest 23.9 25.2 20.7 21.4 27.0

Improvements to housing properties (11.8) (14.1) (14.1) (13.6) (21.2)

Other items 4.1 (0.8) (0.3) 1.4 (0.1)

Operating cashflow net of interest and capex and other 16.2 10.3 6.3 9.2 5.7

Proceeds from asset sales 24.9 23.7 18.5 18.5 26.8

First tranche shared ownership sales 21.4 25.8 23.3 21.4 32.2

Operating and sales cashflow 62.5 59.8 48.1 49.1 64.7

Development spend (79.7) (122.0) (82.7) (45.5) (52.4)

Net movements in borrowings and deposits (7.0) 58.8 58.6 21.2 (2.7)

Swap breakage costs - - - - (34.3)

Net cashflow after development activities (24.2) (3.4) 24.0 24.8 (24.7)

Five year summary  
key figures
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